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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of
WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of Profit and
Loss, statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matter(s) described in the Basis of qualified opinion paragraph below, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for qualified opinion

Until March 31, 2020, Revenue from Sales - Property Development, under Revenue From Operations, in respect
of certain units, were recognized on construction work executed on Residential Tower A, Residential Tower B
and Commercial Plaza based on execution of application forms by the customers and pending the execution of
registered agreements. Such executed application forms were taken into consideration as sold for the purposes
of revenue recognition. The executed application forms without corresponding registered contracts, did not
fully meet all the criteria’s mentioned in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 115, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. To the extent of these units, the cumulative Revenue from Sales - Property Development,
cumulative Cost of Construction and the corresponding surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss of the
company until March 31, 2020 was over stated and the inventory value as on March 31, 2020 was understated.
During the year ended March 21, 2021, the company has cumulatively rectified the same and reversed revenue
recognition from sales and corresponding cost of construction recognized for such units until March 31, 2020,
to align with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers as on
March 31, 2021.

Due to the above mentioned rectification/reversal incorporated in the financial results for the year ended
March 31, 2021, the current year revenue from operations and cost of construction is consequently
understated and the corresponding value of deficit in the statement of Profit and Loss of the company for the
year ended March 31, 2021 are consequently overstated. However, consequent to the above rectification, the
cumulative Revenue from Sales - Property Development, cumulative Cost of Construction, cumulative
surplus/deficit in the statement of Profit and Loss, Amount due to Customers-Unearned revenue on sale of
property and Inventories as on March 31, 2021 are now correctly stated.

Consequent to the above mentioned change in the policy adopted by the company:

a. Revenue from Sales - Property Development for the year ended March 31, 2021 is lower by Rs. 2,39,33,644/-
--b. Cost of Construction for the for the year ended March 31, 2021 is lower by Rs. 2,30,79,194/-;

'_ c Con§equentlv, loss for the year ended March 31, 2021 is higher by Rs. 8,54,450/-

o




Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian accounting standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material




misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by ma nagement.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “"Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As reguired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)
b)
c)

d)

e)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the IND AS specified under Section 133
of the Act;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.



f) With respect to the adequacy to the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure 2" to this
report;
g) With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to our best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 40 to the financial statements;

il The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses

iii. There were no amount which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of the Our Report of even date to the members of WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA)
PRIVATE LIMITED on the accounts of the company for the year ended March 31, 2021.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanation
given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

iii.

vi.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed by us and based on the information and explanations
provided to us by the management, the title deeds of the immovable properties, are held in the name
of the company.

In respect of immovable properties taken on lease and disclosed as right of use assets, in the financial
statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly the provisions of clause
3{iii)(a),(b) and (c) of the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
advanced loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is interested to which provisions of
section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply and hence not commented upon. Further provisions of
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans and advances given and investments made
have been complied by the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public in accordance with the provision of Section 72 and 76 and the
rules framed there under.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148({1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to the construction of residential and commercial properties and are of
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the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We
have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added
tax, goods and service tax, cesses and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been slight delays in few cases.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed statutory amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and
service tax, cesses and other material statutory dues were outstanding at the year end, for a period of
more than six months from the date when they became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of Goods and Service tax and Value
Added Tax, which have not been deposited on account any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Statue Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where the
dues under the amount relates | dispute is pending
dispute (Rs.)

Maharashtra Goods and Goods and 69,56,445 2017-18 Commissioner of

Services Tax Act, 2017 Service tax GST and Central |
Excise Appeal-1|
Mumbai

Maharashtra Value Tax/Interest/P | 40,08,224 2012-13 The company has

Added Tax Act, 2002 enalty filed application

for cancellation of
assessment order
with Assistant
Commissioner

A
C

Sales Tax Mumbai

) S——

ccording to the information and explanations given to us, there are no disputes of income tax and
service tax which have not been paid on account of any dispute.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to information and explanations given by the management, we are
of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank.
The Company did not have any outstanding dues in respect of debenture holders or government during
the year.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to information and explanations given by the management and on
an overall examination of the balance sheet, we report that monies raised by way of term loans were
applied for the purpose for which they were raised. The company has not raised any money by way of
initial public offer, further public offer and debt instruments.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to information and explanations given by the management, we



report that no fraud on or by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

xl. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to information and explanations given by the management, the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

xii. In our opinion the company is not a nidhi company, hence reporting under clause 3(xil) are not
applicable and not commented upon,

xiii. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to information and explanations given by the Mmanagement,
transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act 2013 where
applicable and details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
Indian accounting standard (AS) 24, Related Party Disclosure specified under section 133 of the Act. The
provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xiii) in so far as it relates section 177 of the Act is not applicable and hence not commented upon.

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall examination of balance sheet,
the company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review, accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of the QOrder, 2016
is not applicable and hence not commented upon.

XV, Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.

xVi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1924 are not applicable to the Company,

for RAVI A. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
ared Accountants
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of the Our Report of even date to the members of WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA)
PRIVATE LIMITED on the accounts of the company for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

To the Members of WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA)

PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
‘&_’Eerating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the



auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accerdance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion
According to information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness
has been identified as at March 31, 2021:

Until March 31, 2020, the Company did not have an appropriate internal control system for recognition of
revenue as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, since Sales -
Property Development is recognized on construction work executed on Residential Tower A and Commercial
Plaza is recognised as revenue considering executed application forms by the buyers, instead of duly signed
agreements. The said defect has been rectified in the current year ended March 31, 2021.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial controls over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s
annual or interim financial statements will not be preverited or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the
objective of the control criteria, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

tablished by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note



on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standard on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, the financial statements of WEST PIONEER
PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (“the company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31
2021, and the related Statement of Profit and Loss and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information. The material weakness was
considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31,
2021 standalone financial statements of the Company and this report has affected our report dated June 7,
2021, in which we have expressed a qualified opinion on those financial statements.

for RAVI A. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

m ﬁ No.: 125079W
Shah, Proprietor
embership No. 116667

umbai, June 7, 2021
UDIN: 21116667AAAAHZ3307




WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2021

(i Hundreds)

Sr. No.{Particulars An At As Al
Noiss 315t March, 2021 31wt March, 2010
ASSETS
(1) [Nen-curreat asaets
() Prapersy, pland and equipnient 3 10225567 36 1,08,08,413 83
(b1 Capital work-in-progress d TI77 54 1. 28367 58
() Rrght of use nsses 3 18,394 77 64,931 68
(d) Other mtarigble axsetx s 24654 73 FF612TE
(e} Finangial et
1) Imvestments [ IEL 51899 I2ERS1901
() Loans pod other financial assets 1 - 447,18 0% 9,30,338.47
() Deferred tax assets (net) # . .
(g) Other non-curnent nasets 9 30,486 39 £1,928.75
Tatal monseurrent wxnels 1,40,43,580,86 1,53,07,112.13
12} |Current asets
() Inventories 10 2353348436 1IRE| TT a2
(b} Financial assets
1) Trade recervahles 11 24,25,190.73 19,798,203 72
1] Cash and canh equivalenis 12 £01.790,12 33 465,55
{ifi} Bank batances otfer than () above 13 114578 36 (R ROTRE ]
{iv1 Lomns and ether financial anscis 14 320,71341 31,34.768.90
(e Other corent assots i5 2,44 B99.01 2,60,730.64
Total currenl masits 2,93,31,055.99 1.65,74.851.91
TOTAL ASSETS w&aﬁ A, 15.81,964.04
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
() |Equity
Equnty share capial 16 2884 263 30 28,41 863 70
Chher equnty 17 63,42,200.92 57,801,968 90
Total equity 92,26,467.62 56,33,832.60
Linbilities
(2) | Non-current linbifities
(ny Finnneial habilites
(i} Borrowinus it 138,010,441 34 1,59,55 834 60
(n) Redevermuble preferene shares 1w 323893521 40,17.079 30
b Provimons ] 3008590 19,59% &0
fe} Onher non-current labilition B 5962.92 13,506.22
Total non current linhitites 1, 70,76.425.57 200.28.119.71
) |Corrent labiBiies
() Funancaal liabilies
(i} Botrownga b} 50,61,885 78 11,18,561.75
(1) Lense laksility 17.606,79 67,900.31
(i} Payables
= Tracle phvichles
1) vt outstmding dues of mso
enterprises and small enterprises SR vl
{11} total puratanding ues of creditors
ather fhan macry enterprises and $41.43913 6,91,25920
small enlerpises
- O paryables
{i) tetal gutstanding dues of micro = _
errlerprnes and small enierprises.
(li} totul outstanding duas of creditons
ather than micro enterpeises and - .
small emierpeises
v Other financial labiities 24§ 11,77.539.65 22,38,156:48
(b Crther current libiliies 5 1,02,08,390.77 30,13,574 74
{c) Provizions 26 2,650 29 3,233.47
Total current Hibilites 1.70,71,743.66 1,22.20.011.72
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3.41,48,169.23 3.22,46,131.43
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIADILITIES 4,33,74,636.85 4.18.51,964.04 |
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WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(T in Hundreds)
For the Year Ended For the Yesur Ended

Particul

i NOtes | 315t March, 2021 31t March, 2020
Revenue from operations 27 17.28,930.81 33,87,098 23
UOther income 28 2,66,274.39 1,20,985 55

Total Income 19,95,205.20 35,08,083.78
EXPENSES
Construction cost 29 (2.97,795.36) 1,13,797.68
Employee benefits expense 30 2.96.649.98 5,37.808.65
Finance costs 31 9720.388.52 11,07,797.31
Depreciation and amortization expernse 32 84407098 8,50427.87
Other expenses 33 12.39.655.75 28.83,587.05
Total expenses 30,11,969.87 54,93.418.57

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (10,16,764.67) {19.85.334.79)
Exceptional items = =
Profit/{loss) before tax (10,16,764.67) (19.85,334.79)
Tax expense:
(1} urrent tax -
{2)Deferred tax E a
Profit / (Loss) for the year after tax (10,16,764.67) (19,85.334.79)
ml_lcr mmprrhﬂ_uiu income _
.‘\lfl',l Items that will not be reclassified to profit or — (9.342.05)
loss i
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be ) N
reclassified to profit or loss
B (1) Items that will be reclussified to profit or loss -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be i .
reclassified to profit or loss
Total 13,501.89 (9,342.05)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period after (10,03.262.78) {19.94,676.84)
tax
Enmings per equity share 34
Basic earnings / (loss) per equity share (in ) (3.55) (6.99)
Diluted earmnings / (loss) per equity share (in %) (3.55) {6.99)
Nominal value per equity share (in %) 10 10

Ravi A Shah & Associates

Place: Mumbai
Date : June 7, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Wesl Pioneer Propertics (India) Private Limited

Dr.Shatadru Sengupta

Director

DIN Ng, 00291695

Sundeep Kumar
CFO
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Date : June 7, 2021
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DIN No, 00387797

o2

Veda Joshi
Company Secretary




WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(A) Equity share capital

Particulars Arst Asat
3ist March, 2021 31st March, 2020

No. of shares (T in Hundreds) No. of shares {Tin Hundreds)
Equity shares of 2 10 each jssued, subscribed and fully paid
up
Opening 2.84,18,637 28.41.863.70 2.84,18,637 28,41,863.70
Add: Issued during the year 4,24 000 42.400.00 - -
Less: Bought back during the year - - - -
Closing 2.88.42,637 28.84,263.70 2.R84.18.637 28.41,863.70

(B) Other equity

{% in Hundreds)

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Securities Retaiined . ol
Premium Account RTINS
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 2,12,43,494.93 (1,24,56,849.19) 87,86,645.74
Additions / {Deductions) for the year - (19,85,334.79) (19,85,334.79)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the vear - (9,342.05) (9,342 05)
Total changes during the year - (19.94,676.84) (19.94,676.84)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 2,12,43.494.93 (1,44.51,526.03) 67,91,968.90

(T in Hundreds)

Reserves and surplus

Particulars i Total
Skl Retained earnin
Premium Account o

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 2,12,43,494.93 (1,44.51.526.03) 67,91,968.90
Additions / {Deductions) for the year 5.95.465.60 (10,16,764.67) (4,21,299.07)
Orther comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - 13,501.89 13,501 B9
Less: Utilised towards redemption of Preference shares (41,967 80) = (41.967.80)
Total changes during the year 5,53,497.80 (10,03,262.78) {4,49,764.98)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 2,17.96,992.73 (1.54,54,788.81) 63,42,.203.92

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of the financial statements.

Place: Mumbai
Date ; June 7, 2021

For and on behall of the Bourd of Directors of
West Pioneer Properties (Indin) Private Limited

gl

Dr.Shatadru Sengupla
Director
DIN No. 00291595

W
Sundeep Kumar

CFO

Place: Mumbai
Date : June 7, 2021

/Jﬂ-':'h' e L

Sunil Trivedi
Director
DIN No. 00387797

N2

Veda Joshi
Company Secretary




West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(T in Hundreds)
For the vear ended For the year ended
31 Miarch 2021 3wt Maireh 2020
(Lom) before tax (10,16, 764 47) 119,855,334 79)
Adjustments i reconeile lopy belors tax to net canh fluns
Depreciation/ amortization §,44,070,98 50,427 87
Aswscty wnitten off 858582 #3.51562
Met jain on sale of curent imvesinent - (12.22327)
Provasion for doubtiLl debi'bad debi write off 26,681 63 |, e 000 6%
Sandry helances winen back (63 814 48) (50,857 94)
Fasir walution of security depesit & lease {97,206 21) (54,697 24)
Inserest expetise 9,29,388 52 11,07,79732
Interess (Income) (22,213 44) {22,999 06)
Interest received on Income Ta refund (3827187} (I2.283.41)
Operating profit hefore working capital changes 57045032 (30,881.22)
Increase/{Decrease) in trade payables (61,098.11) ALEIRTR
(InereaseVDooraase in trade recervables (4.72,578.66) (12,534,724 58)
[ VDI m s (9,05,796.17) (15.51,65% BO)
i VD i fi ! assers 2469327 (2,00.218 76)
(Inerease)Deceease in non fnancial ssets 16,557, 58 (29945 72)
Incrensef{Decrense) in financial Habilites (67,003 47) 304376 55
Inereased{ Decreass) in non finsncin liabilijizs 21,88,499 42 3546043 35
Cash (used in) / generated from aperations 15,15,876 21 785017320
Divect taxes (pusd) nat of refunds 3,47 48078 (48,628 11)
Net eash fow (wied in) generated from operating activities (A) 18,63.355.99 TA8388.09
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including CWIP and capitil pdvanees (B2,288 74) (671,509 38)
Purchase of investments - (21,51,%00 00)
Proceods from sabe/maturity of investmant . 218497823
Bank deposit (11,968 18) (21,83391)
Amterest recerved 2183318 23147
Inuerest received on Ineome Tax refund 3827787 228341
Net cush flow (used in) investing nctivities (B) (M. 145.87) {635,001 6)
wis froim flin .
Proceeds Srom isuance of preference shase capital 20500000 2,57.0060,00
Proceeds from isunnce of euity share capital 6,37.865 60 -
Pmuudlﬁ'nmloﬂ;mnhu'rmw = TR, 7411634
Repayment of Tong-term borrowinga (47,15 587 0&) (2.81,73045)
Redemption of preferance thare copatal 8,84, 066 29) (2,51.383 82)
Proceeds from shom-erm bomowings 49,23 405 B 1,83 598 55
Repayrment of shior-term bomowings 14,68,000 00) { §,30,000.00)
Interest paid 19,62 908 65) (750162715
Net cnsh Mlow From fisincing activilies (C) (12,72,490.55) {1.24,262.04)
Net (decrense)increase in cash nod cash equivalents (A + B+ ) £56.020.57 (20.878.01)
Crnsh and cash eduivalonis at the beginning of the yoar 35,460 55 56,347 66
Canh amid cash equivalents ai the end af the vear £91,790.12 35,465.55
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 5,052 50 5240
With bunki- G eurrent socount 5,86,717 62 30,181
With bano - in bank deposit remricied 1,14,978 36 1,093,010
Totnd cash and bank balance 706,768,485 138,480
Less; Fixed depotitn not considered an cash equivalents b, 14,978.36 103,000
Cush and cnsh equivalents in eush flow statement * 5.91.790.12 35,409,558
* Excluding Fixed deposit not tresited o5 Cash and canh eguivilents
Reconcilintion of Lisbilities arising from Finoncing Activities 2 Jon Manidrids)
Particular As i Cuish Flow Non cash chunges As ot
Sist March 2020 St Mareh

Loty term bamowings (neluding cerrent maturities of long term debt] 1.71.93,745 30 {47,15,58T) 1452671 49 1,41,30,528.73
Short term borrowings 9,05 13681 44.53,406 (5.71,984 56) 48,77.558 12

® i Fungreds)
Particulars i Anat . Cash Flow Non eash changes As at
Lo term borrowsags (including current maturities of bung leem dels) 15638 359 40 14,92 385 50 1.63,000.00 1.73,93,745 30
Shirt term botromkings 124,238 22 33,898.59 {163,000 00) 9.95 13651

Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2.1)
An pez_owr repon of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors aof
Wesl Pioncer Properties (Todin) Privale Limited

Bz g

Sunil Trivedi

Blireetior
P

DIN Mo

Phivcie| Musmbai
Dhse - June 7, 2021

Pince. Mumbal
Daate - June 7, 2021
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West Pioncer Properties (Indla) Private Limited
Notes o Financial Statemments for the year ended 3151 March 2021

Corpurate Information

Wwﬁnmhmiuﬂrﬂ-]ﬁ'mlhiudhmmdmrr tion il i of shopping malls. devalopm mﬂuhufmidunudpmmwildweh;ilnmm
pruperty i India. The Company is alio enpaged m the business of operating Family Entertainent Centers (Game Zone) urder hrand name as *Zingeria” While Westiield Entertninment
Private Limited is 3 whally owned subsidiary of the Company, majirity of i85 own ity capidat is held by Winmore Leasing and Holdings Limited {Holding Compiny)

Sigmificant sccounting pulicies
Significant accounting policies adoptisd by hie Compaty are an under

Basis of Preparation of Fi inl Sy
Sratement of Comphisnes with Ind AS

These financial statements hive been prepared |n necordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Secticn 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act") read wiih
the Companien (Indian Accounting Standards) Rudes, 201% a5 amended from time to bime

Attounting pobisieg hwﬂmwmlrmwmmlhmm engepn whiTe @ Rowly tisued sccouing siandsrd s imidially adopted or a reviskon 10 an existing socoutifing
sandard requires & change i the accounting policy hitherto in use

Baly of measurement

The financial stalements have bees prepared mcﬁsmrﬁaﬂuwrmﬂhmmﬂﬂumﬁrwﬂhlhﬂﬂ%lhﬂmmﬂnﬁrﬁmumﬂiﬁm the
lmm_gpwliﬁnbuhw.Wmﬂdmhwﬁhﬂmmﬁimdwwﬁmﬁmﬁqmm&rmwm

Falt\fliu-imuprintmwmuhemiwdm-ﬂumwpﬁmtwuunmmwamﬁ-umummmﬁmmmwumu;mmuor
whether that price is directly observabic or estimated using another vakaation technique In estimating the fair value of an asset or & fiability, the Company takes into scommt the
charncteristics of the asset or linbility if markes prticipinits would take those chamcteristics into account when pricing the asset or Hability st the messurement date. Fir value for
measurement and'or disclosure purposes in these financlel satements is determsined o auch » hasis

Clusxificaifin Inio cuerens snd pon-current:

Assets god linbidities ave clussified a1 Cutrent and Noa Clisreit 4 pér the Company's normal aperating xele and other criterin setout in Schedube 111 of the Companizs Act 2073 Based on
mmdwﬁraﬁﬂmhllrtmymhwﬁmmmammd realisation in cash and cash equivalenis. the Compamy ascertaing its opernting eycle as 12
months for the purpose of Cunmens/Non-Current dlassification of assaty and Bakilities,

Use of judgements and ¢ timiies:

Hﬁm:tlmdﬂ:mﬁaluummhmﬂ:ﬂtynhhMummlnmmmWMMwnmmum of
assety mod lisbilities and disclosite of contingent liabillthos st end of the reporting period, Althaugh these extimutes are based upon management’s best knowledge of current gvents and
actiom, ymcevininty about these asmmpiions and esimates could result in the requsining ad) o the carrying, of assets o hilitkes in. fliture periods: Estinates and
underlying asskmptions sre reviewed at asch repoctiag dare '

Significant munagemint judgements:
Thie fablowiing are significun: manages e Judpemants in dpplying the accounting policics of the Company thit havea sigmificant effect on the financial statements
Revenur recognliivn:

Rmhmmmmhmmtﬂmuymmhsmmmﬂm satisfiction of the performance obligation. The messurement of proress | ootimated by
referenice 10 tie stage of the projects detoamined baned on the proportion of conls incurred to dnte a1l the totl estimated costs i compleie.

11 Classification of property:
The Company deennined whether a property b classified ns building under Progerty, Plant anid Expaipment o sy inventory

(i} Bullding under Propery, Plam and Equipment comprises land s bulldings that are et niecpled for wse by, or in the operations of. the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary Sourse of
busmess, but are held primarily 10 carn rental income. These buildings sre renteif to tenints and ere not infended 16 be sold i the prdininry crune of busiiess

{ii) Imventory compeses property that is hebd for sale in the oedinasy coutse of usiness. Principully theis ace properies that the Company develops wnd intesds 1o sl befoee or an complation
of cotstruction

Il Operatiog lease conirucis - the Company as lestor
The Company has entered Wide various leases agieements mcmymmm«umﬁmarm|mmmdumnmnmw that it vesann all the
Wﬁm»dmmwumuupﬂrﬂwmmww-hﬂuhmumhm
Estimntes nnd Assumptions:

1 Classification of assets and linhilliles inte current nad noa-carrent
Tlﬂlmmudndﬁu:huwllwﬂﬁlidnml:nrrl.lt:n-ﬂ.lm-mnmaamullnodnnmw“:yduuﬂhmpnnlvuhuﬂm!pm]ml

11 kmpairment of psseis:

Ia i b L g the recoverable amounts of each ssset ar COL (i case of non-financiil assets) based on expected future cash fiows and uses an estimared

initerest (ute to disooant them, Estimation relstes to assumptions sl future cash flows and the determination of o suitable discount rmte

U0 Useful lives of depreciabile f amorthable asses:

Mmm'ﬂlMHuﬂlﬁﬂhﬂdw%!mﬁﬂhmlﬂnﬂmﬁquonthde Uincortanties in (hese estimutes
relate to technical and economic obeolescence that may chaige ihe ussys of vermain Gsets

IV laventores
Inventery b staled s, the lower of cosl o net reslisable valie (NRV)

NIV fie complete lisventory pripeny is ansessed inchading bat not limited 10 wacket canditions and prices existing 1t tha reporting date and is Setermined by the Company based ai et
mmount that i expects 10 resdise from the ssfe of inventory in the ordinary course of bustneis

NRY i respsect of inventories under construciion i asseased with reference 1o narket prices (refereice N (e tecent sellinng prices) at the reponing date kss estimated cosis 10 complaie
she conatruction, wnd estimated cost necessary 1o make the sale The conts to complete the comsuiction re sstimated by mansgement

V' Defined Benefit Obligution:
Thie cost of defined benefit gratuity plan ind the present vt of the gratudy cbiigation nlong with leave salury ure determiined using sctuarisl valuations An sciiatial vahition krobves
ITIIH'II.\'IHN&m!ﬁwmIImﬂnhﬂfiﬂﬂhmﬂh!.ﬁmmnm‘uimmqmmipiﬁonofrummuh:yiwm.nnmIh-mplluitlniwnmdmh:
waluation and it Jong-term nuure, 8 defined benefit obligatin o highly sensitive 1o ck in these phions. Al WRsons are reviewnd al mach reporting date




West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Notes o Financlal Statzments for the year ended 3 st March 2031

VI Fair value messuremenis:

Manugemen applics vahumtion echnigies (0 determine th fur value af’ Baancial instridments (where active matkes quotes are ot avialable) amd voin-Anancial memite This tvolves
devefaping estinales and issumptions consistent with haw marker participants would price the invirument ( assets. Managemmnt bases ita assuniptions an pheervalile dats a3 fr u possibie
bt this may not abways be svillable in that cose Mansgement e the bes| rebevant information svailable. Estimated fair vakies Imayy vary G the sctual prices thae would be uchisved iy
an ain's Jengh triasaction af the reporting dare

22 Prugierty. Fluni and Equipment

Recognition and inilial measurenieng
Property, plani and sguipments lmMu:mBWMiMmhﬂwuﬂimmmwm

thmﬁmlmmmuﬂmrmwﬁmw}:amdmuwm b iny whorkmy condition for it intended i The cost alsa Includes direst cont and otber related
Incidental expenies

Bum»in;'cmhmmnmmrmfhimmﬂlamlcmguwhmmmmpddmmwmhrhwuwmﬂmmwmﬁ:
extent they relate 10 the period till such msets mre ready 1o be pat 6 e

When ngnificen: components of properiy and equipments are required 10 be replaced at intervals, recagnition s mads for suih replacement of componants a3 individual ssets with speeific

umIMMhprmLm.lnlnrwnwmlmmHBmpudnmmA.llulh:rr-patund i codd Wie recogmised in the Sistement of Profit and Lo as
e

Subseryuent messurem et

Subsequent cous ata | Huded in the ssset’s carrying amount oF recognised w5 8 Epurate assed, as appropriste, orly when 1 is probable thar future econoeic Benefits Associnted with the

ftem will fiow io the Company and the cost of the itern can be meoasured icliably. Al ather repair snd muinienance costa are recognised in profit or o ws locumed Bems of stores gnd
mw-:mlhdﬁt'mafwm.m-mwm-nuﬁ:ﬂm»mnﬂﬁmmwmm1m. In other canes. sich iems ae classiflod as lveniories

Eﬁuwlmwiuﬁuuﬁmﬂnfm.ﬂwmd%ﬁimmuuoduhﬁﬁnﬂ:‘ the net disposal p and the eafrying ansan of e msct disposed and
are recognized in the stalement of profitand loss.

The Company ifies nnd de i murc-:h:unmupmnflheuupnmdmirlhwmhnncuuududﬂnigﬁﬁmnmh-mdmnd'weum-:dlm
useful life that is msterially different ffrom that of the rémaking asset

Die recognition:
PPE are derecagnised cither when they have been dissosed of or when they are permunently withdsawn from ise and no fitare cconomic benefil is expected from ther dispassl The
differerice between the net dispasal procesds and the carying amoust of fhe aset in recognised b the Slatensent of Prafit and Les in the penod of de-recauenilinn

FProperty; plant end equipmen: heid for sale i valued u lower of their carying Amounis and net realizable values. mﬁﬁmmnmm:ndmh!ammdhﬂﬂtnﬂm

13 Deprecistion on Property, Plant snd Equipment
Lessehold land is umortized on a stroight line basis over the period of lease

WIIMMIMAIhm;mMﬂ Bwes an gpecified in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013, except on below mentioned sissts Uselul lives of the foflowing
Ha3eds are extimated by the Manngement on basls of techinical evaluation

Asset Ty Useful life extimpted by the mansgasient (years)
Fall it curs 10
Bullding 30
Plant & machinery (Gaming equipments) Y

ﬂ:luﬁhﬂiu&muiﬂﬂuu\-uMmﬁdmﬂ:‘-ﬂnnurm.ﬁmnﬂmlmnmﬁuﬁﬂm&ﬂmﬂmmmwmhﬂ, if oppropriste.

Acesntn individuslly costityg Jesst than of equal 1o 2 5,000/~ as2 fully depreciated in the yeer of purchase except under special ciroumstances

The carrying nmourt of PPE s reviewed petiodically for impairment based on internal / external fsctors. An inmpaiimicnt Ipas is recogmised wherever the Garrying amount of nssers exceeds
it# tecoverable smatnt The recoversble amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and valus in use

24 Capital Work in Progress
Capital wark in progress is mated et cost less impairment keser, if uny Coa comprises of expendinires Incurtod in reapect of capital projects urder develpmment and inchades sy
attributable  allocable cost and ather incidenial expenses. Revernies enrmed, ifeny, from such capital project befisre capltalisation are adjusted against 1he caphal wark in progress
s Istangible Auen

Recognition and initial messnrement
mmmﬁﬂﬂulld’mmmi’itidm-wﬁmlmFdnmwmmmuuw-muwmm

sccumilied Impuirment lasses, if any, Injernally generated intangible assets, excluding copitalized development costy, are not cepitalised and (ke expendiiure s refiected in the Statermeni
of Profit and Loss i the year kn which the exponditure is incurmed.

Intangible assets ure i ‘m.w-‘g!uruum.mm-iruinuudmmmmmcm-m;mmumumumnkﬂ'mmmmu
#ot exceed ten years from the date when the asset is available for use Umw:ﬁdm-ummupmﬂmmli&ofmiwnjbl:m:mmhmmlhcm
mnmumumwmmmwhmummmuﬁmrwwu:wmmm.dﬁnuhmuumm
Muﬂwmmmmmmﬁuwwhmwuihmhumlimd\uﬁ:mmmmyhlhnpimd

ﬂimwhﬂuﬁqﬁ'«ndﬂuﬂﬁﬁmdnhmﬂh-ﬂmwnlhdhﬁfwhgumlhnuﬁpnmmmwuuunm-mmonhmmmw
In the Statement of Profit and Loss when the nsset js derecognisad,

A sumesary of amortization policies spplicd o the Company’s Intangihle assets is a5 below:

[Asast type I Uselud life
|Computer mftwie ] 6 yesrs 1
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West Pioneer Properties (India) Privite Limited
Motes. 0 Financial Statemants for the year ended 318t March 2021

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asietn

The carmyirig amounts of assus are reviewod ot each halsnce sheet date 17 theve s eny dication of impairment based on inletnal/exemal facion, ur impairment loss i recoymized
dﬂmlhwmmmmm'mmnminwnnWim Reconeruble amount ks gredter of the asset’s net selling price and value in use In sssexsing value in use. the
wmnmﬂmnmmﬂﬁmmnuth-wwuwunnﬂmlm

Aum: mmhhme{n-mnwmhguﬁ'l (CGU) fuir vadue lews costs of disposil and its value in use. Recovernble amount I8 determined for an
mdnd!lm.mhnlhmduuwmmh inflorwy that are largely indeperdent of thoae from othier ussets or groups of assets, Whest the canrying st of un neset or CGU
mmwm:&mﬂi:mmﬁudimmﬂnm&mlnhwum

M:lnnﬁuml.dupadnbnhmmdnnm-wm amiount of the sase aver s remaining useful e

anlluwwbuudnqnnmgdmnm bether there i oy indicat mnpmwzh-mouh:dhwhmmhM|mamlmnqrMmmhwdm.!rm
NMMMMWM&MM‘;UCWlMMm.Apm-imujymngﬂdhw&mhhmwnubiflmmm-wmhumm
nﬂh%&m‘lmwﬁhmmmmmehMannlm The reversal is limited so tht the carrying nount of the isset does not exceed is
fecoverable amaunt. mr cxceed thi Cartyiig smoun that would have boen determined. e of denreciati had ng brmpi loas becn 1 ised for the msset in prior years

Fair valoe measurvment
“The Company nieasures certiin firancial instnuments ar four value at each belunce dheet date

Fﬂfvil.‘n:ll-ll!p‘nc!thllwuulllbc:l'lcu‘l-niIunﬂmmu'pﬂmum-wHyMnmlymmhmmm icpants 4l the remen! date The fair valise
mmmihwdud-pnmydmnmﬁnmhmmﬂlhhn-twmm%ﬂnm&lw

= I the peincipal markat for the ssset or linbility, or
= Inthe shaence of a principal market, in'the most sdvantimeous market for the asset o fiabiliy accewsible to the Company.

The Company ues valuath i that are approptise (o the cir lmnhwﬂtﬂﬁc&ndﬂ;mndhﬂutnmwﬁrwhu,mﬁmiﬂn'glheuuﬂrwihw
obeervabbe inpuls and minimézing the use of uncbservable inputa

Mmhﬂiﬂlhhmﬁhﬁ&kuﬂakmmﬁmhlkw:mmmmmhhhlvﬂu:m.dnnibnﬂuruuuuhndmlh:hwm
leved ingut that is significant 1o the fair value messuremaent as 8 whole

Level | - Cueted (unadjusted) market prices in actrve markets for identical sssets or Habdisien
Laﬂl-hm:nﬁhhnwwdmfmminm:tl1huwnhmﬂﬂerbnhrmnrlhhlits.ﬁhﬂdlmmnltnnﬂm)ﬁriﬂﬁmﬂlﬂin derived from prces),

The fair value of fnancial imstrumens (hat are bot lwhumthHﬂu_Mlpprwn technigues which maximize the use of observable ek
data und rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. I significam nputs required to fair value an instrement are observable. the instrument Inincluded in Level 2.

lmd&-hpmfﬁhmwhhfwyﬁummhﬁmmmmtmhm,

Hmwmdhmmhmm«mummmmmhwm@mnwmmm«mwmm
analviia, mmm@iﬂumimuungmﬁm rate that reflects the credit risk of counlerparty.

Lenies

The & Ination af whether an e 8 {or contming) o leave 18 bassd on the b oif e war ut the incegii of the lease. The sroungemans bs, or containg, & base i
Rl af the ErTang, s depoaid ﬂllhuu:fupedﬂcmwamsﬂhmm\-ﬂ:ﬁﬂuwwuﬂwormmuun:ﬁghlhmup&m,pmiﬁd
in an amngement mewﬂmhﬁhwmmumhﬁmwmdmmwwvmuﬂhdulmurmmqgmdumiqm.m{?mm
hs only operating lenve anel gccounts the sare aa fullows

T —— -
The Company’s leaso assen classes primanily comist of lessien foe bullding. The O sty hether 1 s ar Ink & bese, 0t incoption of & contrac. A contract s, ar
mlnhh.alwxiflhnmmmeﬂﬂhridllnwmﬂrkunfuid-uiﬁntmrwa.pﬂiudufﬁmmm conlderation. To sssess whether o contract conveys the right
1o eantrol the use of an identified asset, the Company sssesses whether

(1) the contract svalves the use of oo identifiod asset

{Elm.fmminwbuﬁunhmﬂ:bnﬁuﬁwmd:hmﬁww;hlbapﬂhﬂﬂﬁh\uumﬁ

(i) the Company has the right to dircct tho wse of the asset

At the date of commencoment of the Teane, the Coimpany reeognites & righi-of use asset (“ROU™) wid & coreapormling leae Haksllity flor wli lesse arvangemiis in which 1 15 & lessee, except
fr lesses. with o teem of twelve motiths of less (shortierm leases) and leasen of low valoe Rasets. For thess shorrerm and leates of low value nsses, the Company recognises the lense
PRYTICHES &8 &N operating expense on 8 wraighiline basis over the term of the lease

The right-ot-use avssts are initinlly recognised ut cot, which comprasses the initinl amount oF ihe lease Hability wfusted for any lemse payments made wt or privr o (he commenicement dite
of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease inceniives, They are subwequently messsied al cos) fexs atcumulated deprecintion arid impairment losses, it sy

m¢mmmw&m¢eum date an & sersiahit-Tine basls over the shorter of the lease termy and usefiil life af the hindetlying asset The lease liabality is
insitially mennured at the present value of the Ruture lease payments The lease paymeni are discounted using the intereat rate imiplicit it the leane or, i nol resdily determinable, waing the
mmdbumm'ingmuThImﬂnhiminm-ml\-medbvmm:hummmmlurdlmmmlhmmhiﬁmmmmnmmmﬂm
the lasss prvingnts mads

A leese Fiability s vemeusured upon the oocamence of Gertain svents sch 4 a change in the leass term or & change in nden or mio used 10 determing lese payivents. The
remeesurenien| normally tho sdjuts the leased asels Lease Hahdlity and ROU st have been separately presented in the Balance Sheat

Pight-nf-uso manets are tested for mipairient wheaever there is any indiestion thay their carrying ankoulits My not e recoverable Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of
profid and lass

Leitse depoiit given are financial instruments (fimancial asset) pnd nood to be measured at fulr value on initial recognition. The difference between the fair vihes mod 1he tominal value af
depatits is cnnsidered up Rent paid in sdvance and recognised oves the fease term on 4 straight line basin Unwinding effect of such differenc is treated 18 her income for deposits gven
and is scerued as per the EIR method

Whnete the Commpany ks th Lo
Lmlnwii:hlhtnwﬂmmmmﬂlhﬂl&:ﬂm“rmmﬁpdlhmmchn‘ﬁuglum-lﬁn;.ium Asuets subject (o operating lejves are

h:dndndi':ﬁudlmmeilmudinih?nmmﬂMlHﬂLﬂhMlM-hnbuiwﬂnmemuﬂﬂwﬂﬂlhhmmCom.mhading
deprociati yrized m iy e St of Profit and Loss. Initial direct coats such us legal coms, brokemge coat, cic. are recognized iminedi y in b S of

P are
Profit and Lioss
Lunhuihmm"cﬁnﬁlhum{ﬁwwkyﬂnndwhmnﬂhvﬂmmmmumm The difterence lsetween ihe lair vahie snd the nominal valus

of deponits is considered a8 rent in advance and recognised over the lesse term on = draight e basis Unwinding effect of such difference is trested u interest anpense [ Bnaice cost) for
deposits received and in sccrued an per the ETR method.

-
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Wesi Ploneer Propertics (India) Private Limited
Mutes to Financial Statements for the yeor ended 3150 Mareh 2021

Investinrnts in Subsidiaries

Irvesmients in subaidiarics are corried at cost less socomulated impairment Insses, oy, “Mcmmmﬂimmm:hwmﬁmmmhwmd

written down immediately 10 (s recovierable smaant O disposal of nvestisnts in subsifinnes, the difference berween ney di Bl proceeds and the casmying amounts are recognized in
ths Stateenent of Profis snd Loas ope

Hventorics
lewventaries are valued ot lower of'cost and ser realisabie valie Cost comprising of cost of construction/developrent and of materals is determined on FIFD basig

Direcs expenditure relating 1o development wctivities of properties under construction b inventorised Inifirect expenctiture (including barrowing coss) duning the comtruction period i
invertorised 10 the extent the expenditure is dirscaly related 1o construetion. Dithar indirect expenditure (including Iorowing costs) incurred duriny the year ot related 1o the eonstraction
wctivity i charged to the Statemen of Profit and Loss. Costs incurred/ items purchasod specifically for projestn are taken as conmmmed ax and when incurred’ received. Inveniories inchide

conBIction wodksnpogress fmnxﬁmwort-in—m.ruilvﬂuqdumMcnﬂhﬁuufuﬁdlﬁlﬂ.“ﬂmimmdﬂh&umﬂudndmdmpmjmlww
ennwruction

R materials. components, stores and spares are valued af lower of cos and net reslissble valoe Cost is deternsined an FIFO basts.
Revenue recognition
Revenue in recograuod an follows

Bevenue [rom real syiate peajests
Indd A5 115 has been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) oi March 18, 208 and b4 effective from accounting Period begimming o or aller April 81, 2018

Effective from April | 2018, the Company hax applicd lnd As 115 Revenue from contracts with customars which establishes comprehensive framewnrk foir determining whethar, hiw
mich and when revanue 18 1o be recognised.

The campany recogmises rovenue when (or =s) it sutisfies & per: bligatkan by trnafisming & promised good or service 10 8 eusttmer An aases is tranaferred when (or 23 the
customer obdsing control af that s

The Company recugniscs revemi from contract wiih customer when it determines (he satisfaction ol perforniance obligations at a point in time. Revenue b recognised upon mansfer of
control of fromised products o cusiomer in an amoune that reflects the consideration which the Company expecis to receive in exchangs for thone products.

The Company tisen oo based input method for measuring progress fr parfirmance obligation LUnder this method, the Company recoanisen revense in propartion io the actusl peajoct
eost incurred as against the total estimated progect cast

Hevprin e rentals amd relweey focoie:
L:unmmmfrmnmhalmhhm&rnnnwﬁahlhshubmmemumdhﬂupniuduni:hnimimwhmdlmmmlnmmm
from Chjseratinns Turnover based rents are recorded i income in the year in which ey ire eaenid Comunon Avea Msinteranee recoveries fram Lisensees are recognlind & income in the
yens b which the relitod costs are incurred.

Latereat
Remlnmyiudunalimepmpuﬁmmnkhqhumwwmmmmmmwm:wﬂuua Interest income is included under the head “other income’ in the
Statement of Profit and Logs

Divilendy
Reviomg is recogmised when the C

pany"s right 10 receive the p Is established, which in g iy when shareholders approve the dividend.
Hevenue from Game Zone is recognised when it Is earmed and no significant uncerainty existy as 1o 1t realization or collection

All other rovenues gre recognized on an ecorual basis.

Barrowlsg Coss

Barrowing costs consint of intersst and amortization of anciilary costs incurred bn connection with arrumgement of borrawings.

Barrowing costs directly attributabile 1o acquisition, construction or production of an asses that eccanarily takes & subistantial period of time to get ready for-its intended use or sale are
capitalised &8 pant of cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs ans expensed I the period they nre fncurred

Forelgss Carrency Transiations
nerne inchuded i the Anuoelil are ;mmwﬂmwmmhmmmwrmmmhmmh The financial
stulements are pressnted in Indian rupee (INR), which {s the Company’s functional and len currency

Foreign currency iramactions are nocounted {or st prevailing miss on the respestive date of inmmaction. Liabilities remained uasetiled st the yoar ond are tramiimod wt vear end rates
mmmlmmmmmmmmmwmﬂwmmhmmﬁrwammumhmwmopmmummuﬁmm.
{i) Initial Recognition

Fareign cumency iunsactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by spplying 1o the foreign curmency amount the exchange rite between the reportiig currmngy and the foregn curroney
ot the date of the trenssesion

{i) Canvrerzion
Fureign currency monetsry ilems sre reported using the enchange rate prevailing on reporting date. Non-mometary items which are carried in teras of histofical cost denormiated-in o

fareign cummency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. amd non-monetary itens which are carried & fuir value of other dmilar valorion denominstsd in a
foreign curmncy are reporied wang the exchange rates that existed when the values wese deiermined,

Exchunge différances anising on the sentlement of monetary iems or o Company’s monetary items st rates different from those a1 which they wete initislly recorded during the year, or
reported n previous financial satements, wre recognised s income or 4 expense in the year in which they arise

Retiremeont and stbier employes benelits

Betirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is-a defined conribution scheme and contributions thereto are chiarged to the Siatement of Profit snd Loss of the year,

Gratuity Hability ia o defined benefit plan towands retirement benefits, coverimy substantially all eniployees. Liabilliy for the benefit i unbisnded: Cost of providing benefits under the defined
bonefit plan i detérmined using the projocted unit eredil sctuarial valustivn meiliod

kmﬂwﬂwﬁqdnmwmmImﬂ:hmmphaum(ndudhgmmmr‘ immedintely in the balance sheet wilh & charye/credit recogiiscd
in Duher Comprebensiee Incame (MOCTT) in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements rocognised in OC1 is reflecred immediately in retained carnings and b not reclasaified (0 profit of loss in sibseruient periods.

W
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West Pioncer Properties (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3 15t March 2021

Income taxes

Tax expense comprises of carrent and deférred lives Cuirent moome tax 1 measiurel &l the mnount expectad (0 be prld o the wx suthonties m accordance with the Indian Ticome Tax

A wm'“m'mm“wMmﬁfmmuuﬁkmmlﬂdmmhimﬁlhmﬂd|wmlufﬁlimdlﬂhmﬂfmlhr
VERIE

Hisels can be reslized In situstions where the Company lin unabsorbed deprociation of carry forwsrd tax bomsen, ull deferved tax assets are recopnised anly If there b virtuel cerainty
nwnndbywwﬁﬁn;tﬂdumwlhnunhmiﬂmﬁmmmmu

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-nssesses it unrecogriired dofirmed rx nisets It recognizes unrecognized deferred tex assels 1o the exient that it has become reasonably certain
that sufficient fiiture ticsble ncome will be available axainst which s deferred tax assets can be rasfived

mmmm:mnMimmunmmemuHmhw Amy such write-down (s reversed 13 the extest that it beeomes
remsanably certan that sufliciont future toeable income will be dvailable

C\im:utndHﬁummﬁdhm&mhﬂmmﬂwm»immnm. ignised m Other Tncomes of direcily in equity, in which case (he
mm-mmmmﬂmmammmmwuwnmwwﬁ

Expenditure on New Projects and Sabstantial E:::|_|nllln

E*Pmﬁmdhnﬂrulnlummnumhnmimyhudmh-d.mtmwdmmumamumﬂimﬁmmmmmﬂm
10 which the expenditure is indirectly refated 1o constniction or is incid ! thereto Other indirect expendinure (including bormowing costs) incurred during the construciion peiod which s
mﬂmwmmumﬂmummnwmmsmmurmmm'lmmmmwhmmur.mmmhmm
gxpondifuns

All direct capital expendiiure oo expansion 1 capialized mmmuummmnmwﬁmmammwmwmum
expenditure involved a3 & result of capital expansion. Both dircet and indirect expendisure are pitdland only if they vatise of the aset beyond its original standand of performance

Segment Reporting Palicy

Identiffcation of Segniests :
Bﬂldﬂﬂn‘m-wmlppmnh“uﬂ:ﬁrﬂinlndﬂsINO'pﬂltilgWI.Ih={1'm'1'mll'|Ml‘m;mmlmﬁmdﬂﬂwmmmlhfmw'ipfmm
based on an analyss of various performance |ndicators by uperuting veg The Company's operatmg bus are organizod and managod scpurately sccording 1o the nature of
products and services provided, with each i ing & strntasle uevingns it that offers differsol produces il serves differe mackess Analysis of gepgraghical segments is
hased o the ateas i which najor operating divisions af the Company operte.
Smmim-ﬂw.hﬂ:mum“mmbnmmmkmﬂtwmdlllrnbkuntuwnhl:hu'smmuﬂﬂﬁm“mmnhhﬁrinm
mdhdwmhﬂdammﬁmurmhlha:ﬂmumhhﬂtnwm.fﬁp:uulmmfu;miuwhﬁn;wuumHmﬁmnmwnw.lﬁmHemn
ressonalils bid 10 business segments are reflected as uimliocated inpore / exg I ansets / fabilitles

Earmings per sluiie
Basic enrnings per shave b coleulated by dividing net profit or loss for the year atributsbile te equbty shareholders after deducting preference dividend amd artribistable taxes by the wiighted

Average number of eguity shares cutstinding during the year For the purpose of caeulsting diluiod enrmings per share, the fet profit o loss for the year airibupble w equity sharchalders
and the weighted sverage mimber of shares oubstanding during the yess ate sdjusied for the effects of all dilive potentinl equity thares

Provisinas
Amhmmm&mwhamoﬂnﬁmn::uu.to&'mmnﬁllhpmmwummﬂuwurmmmﬁilhs-wwmhlh:ubumﬁmwIn

respect of which o selisble estimate can be made. ?md.inml‘lmulhwumdluMmWMmWMmmmmemulanm
blance stieet date. These are reviewed a1 cach balance sheet dste and adjusted 10 reflect the current best extimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash oguivalent i the financial Matement compiise cash ut banks and on hand, demand depasit and short-teim deposits, which are subject to an insignificant riak of changes in
walie

Fimancinl imstraments
Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognined when the Company bocomes & party 10 the contraciual provisions af the k On imizial iithon, o ial sssol is recognised at fair value, in case

of Financial assets which are recognised ut fiie value through profit und luss (FYTPL), its oM i Tecogs in:.ha of prafit end loss. Tn other cases, the transaction
cost m atinbuted to the sequisition value of the financial anet

ﬁwmmﬂwﬂrdmﬁdwmﬂmnhdmn.nirm:&wpﬂtmm:wmmuﬂﬁamwgﬁuhﬁm«mmmwn.
Financial assets are nol reclassified slisequent o their irion, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model fisr managing finiancial assets.

All rvestments in equity instrumets classified under fnuncial assets wre initially meusured at fur vahes, the Company may. on initial recogailicn, reveeably elect to meatre the same
cither m FVOCH or FVTPL. The Company makss eloction 1o messre the sane af FVOCT basiy Fair value changes excliding dividends,on squity mesnsments measored st FYOCT are
recounized in OCL Amounts recognised i OCI are not subsoquently reclassified 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend ineoms ar vESIMENILY I EUETY instrumests are recognised
as “ofher income” in Statement of Profit asd Loss

The Company o iscs @ financi #uset when the contractual rights o the cash flows from: the financial axset eipire, or it traisflers the contractunl rights 1o receive the cash flowa from
thie nase

Fimnpainsiend of Francisl ssets

Expected credit losses are rocognized for all financinl assets subseq i initial recognitian other than financials asseis i FVTPL category. For finencial assets other than trade
receivables, 20 per lad AS 108, the Company recognises 12-month } credit fosses fior oll ariginated or scquired financial sssets if at the reporting date tha credit risk of the finnncial
siset has not increased signiflcantly since its fnitlal recognition. The evpected credit losses are moasured a5 ifetime expected crodit losses if the eredit risk nn frmncisl nsel incronses
significantly since ity initial recognition. The Compuiy’s irade neceivables do not conain sgnificant Ananch el beves sl om trade recelvibles is § mb an A

equal to fife time expecied Insses | e expected canh shorfull, The impadement losses and mm“?my:aﬁi;hm.mufhammm
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West Pioneer Properties (Indis) Private Limited
Notes. 1o Financial Statements for the year ended 3151 March 2021

Financial liabilities

Firuncial liabilities are recognised when the C b ot party i provisions of b instrument . Financial linbilities ate inirially moasured 31 the amortised cout whless at

initlal recagnition, they are classified ns fmr value through profit and loss Inu-ufmumrﬁu.Mmmumﬁm-tﬁrmMMumh.mmmdeu
smorizeed cost, using the effective merest method,

Financial fiskilities ate subsequenly measured st amortised cost using the EIR fethod Financial Tiabsilities carried at fair value theough profit or Toss are messured w fasr value with all
chiuniges I folr value recogtibsed in the Statement of Frofit and Loss

Aﬁmi&“l)‘llwwﬁmmmnm e the eontract is dicharged, cancelled or expires

Fmﬂmwlmhmlmmmhmmhwudhﬂ-hhnanhmMmlhmhﬂ%mmmqmmwmmwmmhm
intestion jo sewrle on At Basds or realize the asset und nertle the lability simadtaneousty: The legally enforcsable fght must not be contingent oa fiture eventa inid must be enforceshic in
Ve normal course of husiness and in the svent of defsull, insalvancy of bankrupecy af the Company or the connterparty.

Contlngent Lisbilities

AwﬁimH:hik:rhtMﬂwumﬁmmnmwbmuhmm1be¢onﬂrwdhgﬂnummwmwmufumwummmmemn
beyoad the control of the Company ora present chligation thai hmlmﬁﬂmh|IMMIMmmﬁmﬂkmirﬁlumhhMJl
mhgmlhhllwhmmmm&m“m-lhu:uamﬂyﬂumlhmw betug i cannot be measired relably, The Company dtes not recommine a
contingent lisbility i discloses its existence bn the financial ustements

AMesraroment of ERITDA

As permitted by the Guidance note on Schedule 11 o the Companies Act 2013, the Company has opted t0 presem camings hefore finance cost, tux, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separnze lina item on the face of the Sistement of Profit and Lo The Company mensures EBITDA o0 the basis oF profit / floss) from continuing operationa. I ity
Mmoamsrement, |hCmmMmH&hmmmemmMmmuﬂmmmmme:m

)




West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Motes to Findncial Statements for the yeur ended 315t March 2021
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A

PROFVERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Tt i Hmsdreds)

Dwned Assels
Gross bloek Depreciaton Net block
Particulars Asut Additiony/ Dhed f As at As e o Deductions’ As at Asal Asai
Ist April, 2020 Adjustments Ad justmenis 31t March, 2021 | 1st April, 2020 ¥ Adjustoents | 3t March, 2021 318t March, 2021 31at March, 2020
Freehold taind 4.83.311.79 - 483.311.7% - - - - 48331179 48331179
Leasehold lomd 1,50,477.40 - - 1,50,477 40 5.10092 2,550.46 . 7,651.38 142 826,02 145376 48
Banfching 85.51.141.09 #5,568.08 T3 $6,20.571.43 6,82 080 51 371,132 80 - 10,53,213.32 T5,76,358.11 T8.69,060 57
Mall fitouts 5,31,064.51 L0649 46 - 6,41, 713.96 |, 5837116 53,915,112 - 24278628 39942769 3.7L693 35
Planit & equipmenty 21,56,67798 “ 531,02 21,56,140.56 549, 144.17 2,84, 683.91 - B33 A33.08 13,22 307 88 16,07,533 8]
Fumiture & fixtures 3,39.852.04 19,083.01 ToR.32 35813673 4575983 31,90643 485.29 7718097 28095576 2.94,(02.21
Vehicles 20,915.84 - - 20,915.84 740811 3,098 09 - L0710 9.808.74 13,507 73
(O ffice equipmets 13,864,006 - 58748 13,276.59 5,935,08 3,283.88 - 9.22] 93 4,054.06 1.925.99
Compster 35,917 66 17289 96.22 35004 33 21,005,701 8.557.57 RS.6T 19.477.61 G,516.72 14.911.95
Total 1,22,835.111.38 21547343 9,156.78 1,24,89,539.03 14,74, 804,49 TAS, 73414 ST0.96 11,63,971.647 1,002,25,567.36 1,05,08,413.89
Gross block Depreciation Net hlock
Particulars As at Additions/ Dedurtions Asar As at Fov the vear Deductions/ As at As al Asat
15t April, 2019 Adjustments Adjustments 315t March, 2020 Lat April, 2019 ¥ Adjustments 3int March, 2020 31ut March, 2020 31st Murch, 2019
Frochold luod 4.83311.79 - s 4.83,3101.79 - B - - 48331179 48331179
Leaschold Tand 15047740 - = 1,50,477.40 2,55046 2,550,46 - 510092 145376 48 147,926
Building 80,92,051.27 548,166 60 097678 B5.51,141.09 317, 800.94 3.72,544.08 827351 6,82 08051 TE69,060.57 71.75,141.33
Mall fitous 5.31,327.4% - 26297 331,064,531 79,105.66 ™,322.39 56 89 1.58371.16 37269335 4,32.221 82
Plamt & equipments 19.71,496.77 185, 18121 - 21.56,677.98 173581719 2,73,362.38 - 54914417 16,07,555.81 169791493
Furniture & fixtures 2.72215.20 67,636.84 - 33985204 1740628 18,353.55 - 43,759.85 2.94,092.21 2.54,908.92
Velicles 10,915 84 . . 20,915.84 3,698 99 3,709.12 . TAGR 11 13,507.73 17,216,858
(Office exquipmets 12,638 89 1.354,00 12883 13,864 06 299747 2.M0,61 - 5.038,08 7.025.99 o641 .42
(Compditer 33,555.48 402369 1.661.51 35.917.66 932791 11,861.87 184.07 21,008,71 14,911,935 24 227 57
Tatal 1.15,68,850,12 8.006.361.34 52,030,0% 1,22.83.222.38 T.M6.478.50 T,76,844.45 B514.47 14,74,508.49 1.08.08.413.89 I 08.62.411.62
Leased Assets (T In Mundreds)
Giroas Mock Ihepreciation Met block
Addition on
Particulars Asat 'm“';rh 4| Deduciony Asat As at For the venr | Peductions! Asat Asar Avar
Iat April, 2020 |1 A_“q'm‘"" siv s Adjustments 31st March, 2021 | 1at April, 2020 YU Adjustments | 313t March, 2021 | 31st March, 2021 | 31st Mareh, 2020
April, 1019
Bicfiny 1.29.863 36 - I 0003 1,28,76333 64,931 68 4543688 - 1.10,368 56 18,394.77 64,93 08
Total 1.29.863.36 - 1,100.03 1,28,763.33 G, 231,68 A5 436 88 - 1, 10,368,546 18,394,77 64, 230.68
Gzross block Depreciation Net block
Addition on
Particulars Anat T nmui h::":!; e Dedue ooy As nt Ax st Pt Deductiony As at As st Axat
st April, 2019 AS 116 Ist Adjustments S1si March, 2020 e April, 2019 ¥ Ad justmenis st Mureh, 2020 31wt Mareh, 2020 st March, 2019
April, 2019
Bubdie - 1.29.863.36 - 1,29,863 36 64, 93168 64.931.68 64 911 6R -
“Tutal - 1,29, k6336 - 1,29.863.36 - 4,931.68 3 64,951.68 6l 93168 -




West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Notes 1o Finsncial Statements for the year ended 315t March 2021

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
(¥ In Handreds)
Partbeulsr Al AL As Ar
Jin March, 2021 Iat March, 3020
Civil work 339165 TTO8243
Commlinmey . 1036027
Ermpioyes cous 1018875
Lanc/Dievelopment cost . 187267
Cither overhesds 438580 867 45
Tatal 17784 1,28 36788
OTHER INTANGIDLE ASSETS
(Computer sofiware) (€ in Hundredy)
Particularg Ax Al As AL
st March, 2021 3w Mnreh, 2070
Gross block 49,192 66 44 893 56
Additioms . 4892 10
Detation 58.06 -
Toual 49.734.60 49,792,566
‘ | depresi: and 1 16,1799 TAIR AT
Depreciation during the year BARE 30 B.451.74
Totil 15,079,857 14,179.91
Nes block 24,654 73 3361278
Tistal 24.654.73 3361278
INVESTMENTS (NON CURRENT)
{2 in Husndreds)
A A1 As Al
Particuls
i 315t March, 2021 st March, 2020
Unguoted Equity luatramedais
5,27 666 Eguity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up of Westfield Ensertainment By Lid 3289518 ILERSIETO
(35t March, 2020 - 65 27,666)
Ungiaoned Eqgulty Initrumenis
i Munf!lﬂﬁlﬂypqiduumlenwhulnmmundTmi@Liﬂimd 020 0
(378t March, 2020 1)
Total ILHD518.99 33.89.51%.01
LOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON CURRENT}
(€ in EMM_AL
As A As AL
Prticalazs Ihst Masek, 2021 st March, 2020
Securty deposits
Ulirsecured consiféred poad 36,700 80 1.22,643 39
Capital shvmisces LA L B 17,801 02
Lonns snd sdvances 1o related pares® - 131,311 67
Advance inx paid (ne of provisions | 310,802 61 6,568,363 39
Tatal 4,47, 180108 G320 338,47
*Loans and advances 10 & relsted parrien melode sccrued intorest of € Mil (318 Marcli, 2020 © % 16,473 57 huadieds)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
(2 in Hundreds)
7 Al AL Ax At
Particular 3181 March, 2021 3141 March, 2020
Deferved tux Lubifities
(O differences betwezn boak and tas deprecintion TIT.622 88 738,068 4]
Ot hemse reitals equalisition 242378 359128
On aceount of fult vahuation of redeemable preference shares and lease rent deposits 13935170 1.56,872.53
Chn fisir waluation of imvesmens 41,01 -
4,79,300.15 8,97,108.63
Peforread tax assels
(O pronasion for doutefal debits 53 304 18 o3, 184 11
On unabsorbed depreeiatson 23,565,035 05 1177076 52
O unabsorbed Capitl Loss 11,834,652 10 12,79.884.92
On brought forward Losses 51024550 4.00,T13.24
O enpenditire deductible on actunl payment 8,239.04 10,740.23
On fur valuation of feass expenies {194 40} THE,TT
41228387 I940, 410,79
Deferred tan masetn{liability -Net 31,40.985.72 I 44,272.16
Diaferred ta nesets{ Bability) rocognited = -
The prajects of the Compatiy belng capital intensive mauy not genernte reasonable prodits (n the foreseeable fiture and hence Deferred forwanid Lasses have not been




1o

1]

West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Mates to Financial Stateiments for the year ended 3101 March 2021

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
(i Hunde di)
A AL An Al
Prrtieuinm 3zt March, 2021 Slst Murch, 2020
Trepaid expemes T340 LOST .09
Unamartised aneilliary borroming cost Pl N 50,831 86
Total 3045595 5192878
INVENTORIES
(% in Hundreds)
Mg At A Ad
Particolurs
31t March, 2021 Jis March, 2026
Constucrion matensl 1,753,581 27 1,719,279 45
Construetion work in progies L54.36.430 84 236,495 53
Seoves & spaies 23,40225 12000 H9
Total 136,33.454.36 238.61,577,91
TRADE RECEIVABLES
(¥ iis Hundreds)
% Al AL As Ay
it it March. 2008 | 3ist March, 2020
Trnde receivahlen considersd good - secured 1871825 4,921 87
Trmde recedwnbles considered good - unsecured 1271135 %) 04248 23
Lest Aliowsnce for expected credit lpes (B.887.75) {88487 75)
Trade rocervables which have significant incresse i credit sisk 141,602 o 1, 10673 44
14.22 569,11 10,70.354.79
Lesa; Prowisson for trade receivablies which have significant increase ja credit risk {141 602 16) (110,072 44))
13,80,967.01 960287 0%
Other Receivabiles
Trade receivabl idered good - ] 107,068 90 21692152
Trade rocetvables considered good - umsecured 95715483 B,02,089 85
Trade receivables which have significant incresse in credit risk $1.29)38 1,32.097.16
150153510 11.81,100.53
Lese Provision for trede receivables which have significant inctease in eredit risk {37,291 38} L(LI20%716)
1hA44,223.72 10,19.011.37
‘Tatul 142519173 19,719.203.72
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(¥ i Hundreds)
As AL As At
Ry Jiad March, 2021 At March, 2620
Cash aned cash egquivalents
(1) Batances with banks
- In current soooumts 5.B6,737.862 30,180.95
Fined depoaits with maturity of less than 3 matiths - =
i) Cash in hand 5,052.50 S I8E 60
Total 5.91,790.12 35.469.55
BANK BALANCE OTHER THEN CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(@ in Hundreds)
As At As At
Particulars 3isi Maren, 3021 3131 March, 2020
Cashi smad eash equivalents
(1) Balances with banks
Held an margn morey, guaranteey or other canmarked balances 114,978 30 LE30I0 R
Tuotal 1.14,978.36 LA3A10, 18

The fined deposits are crested for the Debt Service Reserve Account MwlumNTmmm.lhfmmemMMﬂmmm

equivalent 10 | months imtorest

Margin money deposits given as seeurity

Margin monay deposit with & Garrying amount of 211,71% 38 hundreds {315t March, 2020 €11,143.67 hundreds) are subject to iea with Maliarashira Pollution Control Board, Kalyan

Margin maney deposits with a carrying amount of £3,904.94 hundreds (31st March, 2000: ¥5,569.91 hundreds) are subject 1o lien witl Maharashira Pollition Coutrol Board for Kalyan
Ball

Margn moncy deposit with & carrying amount ef €10,00000 kumdreds (315t Masch, 2020° T10,000.00 hundreds) sre mibjoet to lien with Maharashire Paliution Control Beard,

Aurnigshad
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West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Notes fo Financial Statements for the year ended 315t Masch 2021

LOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)

(T im Tlumilerids)
Farticulsrs As AL As AL
315t March, 2621 30st Mareh, 2020
Security deposity
- Unsecured considered good o dn i, Al
Ovheer BoRan amd advances B2061e 9 33467342
Totnl 3,20,713.41 33476550
OTHER CURRENT ASSET
(% in Hundreda)
. As Ay As AL
Pariiculnm
3151 March, 2021 I3t Miurch, 2026
Prepaud expenses 1304773 14,34v, 65
Balance with governmei ulkirities 1,719,778 90 167, 718,19
Unamortived ancilliary botrowing cost 21,9667 21,000.67
Acerued income 28800 21 11,558 86
Others 180,26 30,957 00
Hent paid i ndvancs curmet 1,090 &4 308326
Total L5901 LTI G
EQUITY SHARE CAFITAL
(¥ in Hundreds)
As AL As Ay
Farticuinry 3lat March, 2021 3181 March, 2000
AUTHORISED
1,07,39 868 Exuity Sheres of 210 ench 30,23,968 6D 30,23 585 RO
{316 March, 2020; 3,02.39,84%)
12 Opticaally Convertible Cumulative Redesmable Prefinence Shares (OUCTRPS) of $10 esch 120 120
{315t March, 2020 12)
2,70, 100 Nedoemable Preforence Shares of T10 each 27000 00 2701000
(315t March, 2020: 2.70.100)
Total 34,51,000,00 30,5100, 1
ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
2.88,42,637 Equity Shares of 210 each fully paid up 28,84.263 70 2E41,853T0
(318 March, 2020: 2.84,18,637)
Tatal 15,084,763, 70 18,41,863.70
Heconciliation of equity shares vutstanding af the beginning and ut the end of the year
Equity shares
TParticalar 3at Marchy, 2021 st Mareh, 1020
N, (T in Homdreds ) No, (T in Hundreds) |
At beginning of the year TR 1L 6YT 28,41,85. 70 284,168,807 W41, 865 70
Adif: Issued during the year 4,24,000 AZANG 00 - -
Leay: Bought back during the vear - - » =
Chutstanding at end of ihe year 2,88.42.637 28.84.263.70 2,84,18,637 28,41.863.70 |

Termy/ Rights aitached to Equity Shares

Th:{‘mpun'_.-hmunlynn:dmnrqdrrmmhn-'mgpuvnlnaMtlnprdnw.mumﬁmmhmitummmewmg The Company declares and pays
dividends in Indian napees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o approval of the sharsholiers in ihe ensising Anmual Genersl Meeting.

For the year onded 315t Mareh, 2021, ne dividend in propased 10 be pald to the equity sharehulders (2051 March, 2020 Maly

I the evet of liquidation of the Company, bolilers of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive vemaining asets of the Comipany, afier distribution of #ll preferentis) amusts. The

distribution will be in propontion to the muanber of oquity shares held by the sharcholders.

Shares hedd by Halding Company

Ohut of vhe ayuity sharos issued by the Company, the sharas beld by its holding company are s helow: (T in Hundred
As Al AsAr
iah b 315t Mareh, 201 |
Winmuore Lensing nod Holdings Limited, the holding company
2,609,867, 789 Equity Shares ol T10 cach 26.96.778.90 26,54.376:90
{315 March, 2020 2.65,43,769)
26.96,778.90 16,540,376,
The boldiing company has 93 8% sharcholding.
Details of sharehaldery holding more than 5% shares in the O 'y
Jisi Mareh, 2021 3lst March, 2020
Partieutars %% holding in e holdiog in the
N the class No. clans
Equity Shares of 210 eoch
Winmace Lensing and Holdings Limited (Holding Comgpany) 2169,67,799 93.50% 2,65,43,769 93.40%

A per recprds of the Company inchiding s register of shancholderv/members and ather declirationy roceived from share holders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholdlag

represents both legal and beneficial ownerhip of shares

(V)
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West Ploneer Properties (India) Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3158 March 2031

OTHER EQUITY

(¥ in Hondreds)
Paniita A1 AL Ax AL

. o 3ist March, 2021 315t March, 2020

Securitles preminm
(Dpening balance 12,8494 91 LITAI 48493
Add - Premism en ssue of equity shares 595,465 60 .
Less Utilised tonwamds redemption of preference shares (41,967.30) .
Closing balance L17.96.992.73 LI243,494.53
Surnius/{ Defieig) b he Ststement of Profit and Loss
Opering balance (144,851,526 03) 11.24,56 840 19)
AddLess) for the penod (10,16, 764.67) (15,85 334 Ko)
Impact on secount of employes benelits experse 1330191 19,342.03)
Inipact on account of change in the fir vibue of Fnancial instrement {0.02) .
Clasing balance (154,54, TRE.K 1) {1.44,51.526.63)
Toul 63,42,203.93 67.91,.964.90
NON CURRENT BORROWINGS

(% im Hundreds)
Farticular: An A1 An At

3at March, 2021

31ui March, 2030

ecured loany
Term Ipans from banks (refir (A) snd (B) below)
Unsgeured lonny

1,29 53 290 (& 146,36 5B 82
Secuniy deposits BB 41y LA0J3al96
(Other joans and advances - 469,000.00
Lisbility eomponent of QCCRPS a47 3Bz
Total 138014405 1.59.55,934.60

Term lapus balusce as at March 31, 2021 represents:

() Term Joan - Lesse Rentul Discounting availed by the Compmiy in Jine 2006 a1 rite af interess
equiitable morigage on Metro Mall Land sid Building of fhe company aad hypothecstion of

2028

(i) Texm koan taben In March 2017 aod dunng the vear o1 rie of interest equivalent ta Six Monih MCLR of the bask phun
und ypothecation of current assets including recsivables of Metro Grande at Kalyan The loan i repayable from June

The Company dots not have ny contimumg defaults in vepaymment of the ks and interest aa ot the reporting date;

(1) Term loan taken in Febeuary 2019 and during the yesr at rate of interest

equivalent 1o noe year MULE of the bank. The loan iv secured by firs charge by way of
Lease Raceivables trom the sald property. The loan is repayable from July 2016 to Decernber

1.45% The loan 1 secured by a first charge o the lad, bulldings
2020 10 September 2022

equivatent t0 One year MCLR of the bank phus 0 75% The loai is secured by first charge by wity of equitahle

murigage on Metro Mall Land srd Building of the Compazy ard hypothecation of Lease Receivables from the naid property. The loan ks repayable from June 2020 1o August 2030,

loais as also the reaidual tenorhas boen shifted

pericd March 2020 to August 2020 from RBL Bank Ltd o5 per RBI Notification. Accordiigly, the rejsaymeric sehedule for such

The conpany Has wiailéd the schems of the central government for Emergency Credit line Guaranstes scheme and RBL bunk has eoctionsd an smount of TIA94 Cron 23 012021 The

Company han slready drown part of it ta May 2021

NON-CURRENT LIADILITIES - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(T in Munerrds)

As At As AL
Pa o 31st March, 2021 3ist March, 2020
OCCRPS 624 &34
Redeemable preference shares (51 1% 7,332 07 ¥7.69,071.07
Redeemable preference shates @1 2% LI E L) 2,53.600 (0
Tatal 31.38,938.31 40,17,079.30

Reconelliation of shared ootstanding at begloning and wt end of the year

Particular As AL 3si March, 2021 As AL 31si March, 2020
= Face Value (T in " Face Value (¥ in
b Hundreds) ' Hundreds)
At beginning of the year 12 120 12 120
Converted into equity shares during the yoar a - . i
|Outstanding at end of the year 11 1.20 1z 120
1% Reddecnnahle jiraferense shares
Particulsr As At 31st March, 2021 Ax At 30a1 March, 2010
Fare Value (¥ In Face Value (T in
o Hunireds) i Hundreds)
At beginning of the yeas 200,106 20,010.00 2,20,100 22,010.00
Redeemied during the year st option of the preference sharshalder ua per terma mentioned in 19
Geii 16%,000) (6.990,00) {20,000) (2,000.00)
Outstanding at end of the year 131,100 13,110.00 240,100 20,010.00
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West Pioneer Properties (Indin) Private Limited
Notes to Finiinial Statements. for the year ended 3 15t March 2031

12% Redecmnble preference yharey
Particulary As At 3151 March, 2021 As At 31si March, 2020
= Face Value (T in N Face Value (Tin |
: Hundrrds) = Hundradi)
AL begmning of the yesr 25,200 2.520.00 - -
Issued during the year 20,400 2,050.00 15,200 2,520.00
Ouistanding 51 end of the vesr 45,700 457000 15200 1.520,00

Terms of Cooversion/ Redempiion of OCCRPS

As per perins of ha allosimwar, (he Company shall dectare and fay dividends and oll unpeid dividends, iFany, stibject 1o the ('ompany having distributible prafits in sccordince with
provisions of Section 123 of the Comparies Act, 2013 Dividend rmie shall be subjec: lnmhhncmmmhmﬂnuhmmw&[m;um!lummwudymdingthﬂ
dnnnfmhgnfrh.t‘mumﬂwdnfmmmu which the Halanee Sheet and Stasemien of Profit and Lmspnm}rim;tnlhuukwmmmwmlmmdhth Board The
rate of dividend waill be such Rank nmwnm.pmddmunummw&mrmmmm.p.; The dividend rate v 6 25% for the year anded March, 2027 (315t March,

Each holder ol QCCRPS can opt 10 conven its preferenc shiares into equity shares on & date niod being beyond expiry of the |%th anniversary from the Date oF lssve Le. 19tk Docernber
2010, 1fn holder g1srcites the conversion ogtmn, the Conymuey will issue 1 equity share for each preferonce share held

IFOCCRES holders do not evercise their conversion cption, all preference shares will be redesmable at end of the 19® snitiversary frum the date of issue. In event of liquidation of the
Campany before somerson' redemption of DCCRPS. balders af OCCAPS will have prisrity over equity shares in payment of dividend and repayment of capital

Terms of Conversion/ Redemption of Redermable Preference Shares
The preference shazes. do et carry night 1o dradend. Alsa, they cary right to vote ealy in accordence with privisinny of section 47 of the Compamies Act, 2013

Redemption of Redecniabile Preference Shares:

L AL gptiom of the Campany:
The preference sharss would be rodeemshle at any time within 20 years from :benhuoﬁw:nnuimnﬂhnfwmbysmq- AR haurs prior wittien netice o th holderis) ar the
redempiion price caloulated based on Internal Rate of Rotum (IRR) of 11% rmpuunédmuﬂb'ﬁumltrdulzdmw of the last call money till the date bf sedemption

IL At aption of the Preference Shareholdecs:
The preference shares would be redeemable st uny time within 20 years ﬂﬂmlhﬂdll:oflmlnmﬂflhehﬂmbyj\dlna Iﬂdaﬂm»ﬁ:lmmmmfh&cmnl
redemption price 8z per the specified rates compounded anmnlly from the dats of receipt of last calf money 1l the dare of redemiprion.

Termy of Conversion' Rederption of 12% Redeemabie Preference Share.

L At sption af the Company:

mmmmmumnmnm wilkin 20; years ftom the date of rsaue wt the optipn of (e ssier Company by giving & 48 - hours prior writien sotice 1o the
hdhttrwm-rdmmemwh-ulwmhndnnmwmr-nrlmﬂn:mmmwrlmumw annually from the date of allotment 1l the date of redemption of the
Preference Shares

il A uption of the Freference Shareholders:
The Preference Shares wowd be redeemable, a1 hrvy tite within 30 years from the date oF issee gt the option of the Preference Sharehalder(s) by ving & 15 daye prior written notice io the
Compumy a1 the redomgrizon price ax per the sepecifled rates compouncd annuelly fram the dite of alntmeit () the date of redemption of the Preference Shares

Dectails of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Coni sy
Particalun

As AL 316 March, 2021 As At 31wt March, 2020
% holding s e Molding in ibe
Na. the clasy Na, clang
(1 DCCRPS of €10 each fully paid ]
Lafits Dhevi Jatia Joimly with Banwars Lal Jatia 12| 100,054 1 B
Ushi Devi Jatin Jointly with Ranwari Lal Jatin - = L] 56 1%
Bamward Lal Jatia HUF - - 1 §3%
Smita fntia Joinily with Amii Jatia - - 1 B
Asmiz Intis HUF - I 3%
(i) 11% Redeemable preference shares of €10 each
Amir fatia (HUF) - - 4,000 32,0
Surenitia Kumar Mohaits 20,000 15.3% 20,000 10,09
Caumay Molatta 15,000 114% 15,000 1.5%
LUisha Dest Jutin jointly with Baswariial Jatin 18,000 13.7%) 18,000 0%
Vishwai Irvesiment & Tradimg Co Pwi Lid 10,100 1.7 10,100 S0t
Avand Veena Twisters Pyt Lid 10,000 T 6% 10,100 500
Banwarilal Jatia jointly with Ushadew Jatla 43,500 ™% 15,000 179%
(iii) 12% Redeemnble preference ahares of 710 saehy
Lalita Devi datia ointly with Bamwarl Lal Jana 45,100 100 O 25,200 100 (P

As per records of the Company including its regisier of shateholdersmenibers snd ocher declarations receiveil Tiuen share holders regarding beneficial inlerests (e above shnreholding
represents beth legal and beneficial wnership of shares,

FROVISIONS
(% i Flundrrils)
As At An Al
Particalurs Aiwt March, 2021 Mt March, 2000
Prowision for gratuity I 500 40
Tuoeal 38,590, 60

-
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Notes to Financial Smteinents for the year ended 315 March 2021

DTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

(b Hundreds)
Panicalsss As At As At
i Slwi March, 2021 i March, 2030
Rent recerved n advance 506292 15,506 22
Total £.962.92 15 506.21
SHORT TERM DORROWINGS
¥ in Husdreds)
Particulars e A
st Mareh, 2021 Jlst March, 2020
Snnmr:tdm 184,327 64 12142694
Loan from mbndhywy' 48,77.558.12 -
Seoyrod cnsh credit Bility repayable an demand . 2,95,13841
Totnl 50,61,885.76 11,88.563.75
*Loun given Lo holding company for business purposes and [nterest will be chargeable annualty ot the end of fnancial yeur:
TRADE FAYAHLES
(¥ in Hundrods)
Particulnr As At As At
3tai Murch, 2021 31ai March, 2020
Trade pnyuhl:-
Dhie 1o micro and small enterprises 6223127 wanm
Dse g nthers. £4) 4100 6,91,338.20
Towl 608,670,480 72858097
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(T ln Hundreds)
Particalurs As Ak A A
L Slat March, 2021 31wt March, 2020
Cusrent maturitics of bong term borrowings 11,77, 839 65 22 88,156 4%
Total 1177, 539,65 23 H8,156.48
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
{2 lin Hunadreds)
Prrieulars As AL As At
Stai March, 2021 31wt March, 3024
Revenue billed in advance 4574 16 6,14697
Other advances
w uw'hm A3 804 B4 1303035
Retention Ihnlrnﬂ 234,043 54 10781041
Advance recetied fiom customers. 12,16,940.78 L4335042
Othery
Stawtory duis payable 1,08.030,52 15,107.20
Salasy payable 17,719,048 4880601
(Other paysbles 24491100 1138150
Asmounr due 10 customens-unesrned revere on sale of property 2,25,452.39 T304,257.00
Hent recerved in advance 2315121 14,530.99
Interest accrued bui Aot due on borrowings . £8.541.91
Interest acorued and due on borrowings B8.724.25 -
Totnl 1J82.00,390,77 R STLTS
CUHRENT FROVISIONS
(% in Hundress)
As Al As At
Particulan 31st March, 2021 Jist March, 2020
Provision for gratuity 265029 347
Tatal 2.650.29 3313347
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
{1 in Hondreds)
For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Partleulars 3w March, 2021 Jlait March, 2000
Sale - property development {65,719.7%) 140558 37
Sales-game zone® 41,009.93% 1.66,790.09
Lense rivenus 148200 12 50798571
Lanse starigitlining (4.662.6%) (4.780.05)
Revenue share B2 TR A0 1441434 40
Other opersting revetue®* 2741571 11,35, 104 62
Total 17,28,730.81 33,87,098.23

* Sales - game zone is net of Laxes

** Othier pperating income includes property fax amounting to € 13,847 78 hundreds (315t March, 2000: 33,657 51 hundreds) recovesed towards Kalyan Mall

W
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Waest Pioneer Properties (Indin) Private Limited
Netes 1o Financial Staterents for the year ended 315t March 2021

OTHER INCOME
(¥ in Hundrrds)
For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Farticulars 315t March, 2021 3131 March, 1020
Interest income:
On bank deposita UL B 5.50F 48
Others 10,400 %8 17,000 5%
Other meoms® 244 060108 97,086.49
Total R 1,66,2T4.50 1,20 085,55
* Other incone inckides Inferest on mcome tax refimd of € 38 377 87 bundreds (3 1at March, 2020 22,283 41 hundreds)
CONSTRUCTION COST
(tin Hundreds)
For the Year Ended | For the Year Encded
Particalars 3t March, 2021 Jlist Mareh, 2020
Imventory ot the beginning of the yesr L3359432 4 20823789 48
(+] Progect rolated expenses 19,52,764.01 26,49,440, 54
(=) lrventory at the end of the year (236 09.59211) (2,33,28.412 74)
Toml [2,97.795.56) 1.13,797.68
Details of cost of consiruction of projwerties (T In Taivcredls)
Tor the Yrar Ended | Far the Year Ended
Farticular 312t Mareh, 2021 31sa March, 2020
Dievelopment costs (4 2972 25) 991551
Consultascy & architect fees {7801 03) 136764
Civil work & expenaes (o contracions {1,69.252.22)) F1465 75
M s expenses (86,447.86) 71,048 78
Total (2,97,795.36) 1,13,797.68
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(¥ im Hundreds)
For the Year Ended Far the Year Ended
Particulars Ik March, 2021 Sha Minrch, 2020
Salaries wages and bonus® 2.71,133 0% 5,006,880 B4
Contrsbution to prowvident and other funds 11,9811 1837731
Girmuity expenses 10,708, 95 74917
Seall wedfare expenes 275675 465431
Toual 1,96, 649,91 537 ROLES
et of capiealization m_i imventorised T 1,06,761 17 hondrads (Freviows year - 2 2,13, 764,68 hondreda)
FINANCE COST
(T im Hundreds)
For ihe Year Esclesd Far the Year Ended
Farticular 31mt March, 2021 Jiat March, 2020
Interest expeime® 9.19.631.95 10,87.501 46
Bank charges 87208 [RAIE +
Amortuation of analiany cosis 4024593 1336 W7
Interest sxpoises fior lense Rabality 4,855 44 10,107 &7
Tutal 939,388, 53 11,07.797.31
* Net of capitalisstion and mventorised ¥ 8,68,626.99 hundreds (3181 March, 2020 T 9,55,010.90 bundsedy)
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
A i Mumdreils)
Far ihe Year Ended Faor ihe Yeur Ended
Particulary 3isd March, 2025 Sist March, 2020
Deprecintion on tngible msseis TE9 T34 14 1654 45
Amortization of intangihbe assers 8,899 06 BESI T4
Amortization of raght of use asset 45,430 8 &4, 531 6
Total EA44.070.88 BS0A27.HT

W
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OTHER EXFENSES
(8 by Husddreds)
For the Year Ended | Far the Year Ended
Particulars 3iat March, 2021 Iisi Murch, 2020
Rent 3317033 TR
Power and fuel 30327356 596,845 58
Wister charges IWITT S RERZIE )
Aates sl Luies? 1,19,930 50 1,148,860 33
Insurance 30,138.18 17,761 06
m and maintenance 290,584 57 1143571 84
Advertising and siles promotion 3751050 152514 85
Brokerage and discounis 127160 67770
Travelling and conveynnce 777420 14,186.06
Commumication cots 246633 17,112.31
Priiting and stationery 1,352 82 £334,10
Lagaland picdemslons] fees 208,126 61 324,339 06
Piyment te auditors (refor note 41) &, 150,00 5,000 00
Uitility mamageinent vervice charges 2,247 75 60,518 12
Security charges G2 $TT 80 1,331,502 68
Brossion for doubeful debis 16,851 45 116,009 69
Assets writion off 06912 K3.51563
Miscellaneous expenses 21,554 9% 5,574 BS
Tutal 1239,655.78 ISANSHTOE
© Rates and thves include properry tx pald smoaniting to % 98,001 76 hundreds (315t March, 2020 1,00,888 40 hisndreds) towards Kahynn Mall
Earnings Per Share 3001 Mareh, 2020 31at March, 2030
Loy afier tax (% in Hunereds) R 10.16,764.6T) {15,83,534.7%)
Loss avributabibe 1o equity shareholders @@ in Hundreds) (10,16, 76467} (19,55.334.79)
Weighted average rinber of shares ZX6,46.319 19 2,84,18.637 00
Baic and diluted eernings per share (in T) (135 (659)
Segment laforniution
I Anper Indinn Accounting Standard 108 'Operating Segrments’, the Company has repormed “Segment Informanien’, 11 described below,

The Company is involved in conatruction and management of shopping malls snd lising ¢ommercial ipace therein in Indis.
The Canpany has definied its aperatinha into Fve major busineses. Rutsll, Reildential and Office Developments for Sake and Wareheusing Developmsent and Family Enfertai Cenire
{FEC). Particulars of the rype of products and services provided by each repariable sagment are s follows:
Retsil Segment inciudes activities relnted 10 construction snd eising of dliopping malis and related wervices
Fuenily Entertainment Cenire (FEC) segment inchedés sctivity misted 1o Game Zone for Family Entertamensent,
Reesislential Seyment includes activities related to construction end nabe of residentinl premises,
Office Seigment inchides activifies reluted 1o construction and sale of commercial premsses,
Warghousing Deovels 8§ imchudes construction and sale of waichousing premsisss
Other imastmants | nssety, lony erm resources mised by the Company, financing [abifities sad related income and expense are considered under Unalk

2 There is one external costonserns fevenues from whom exceeds 10%5 of the company's revenue. The reverives from the said customs il dischosed under "Rerail Segmen®

&
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Maotes to Financial Statements for the veor ended 315t March 2021

Yeur Ended 315t March, 2021

(¥ in Hundreds)

Retail HResidential Office Warchousing FEC Unallocable Tatal

REVENUE
External sales 17,53,690.54 1o, 610 .58 (82,390 33) - 4101998 - 1728530 81
Toral revenue 17,853,690, 58 16,610,585 (52,390.33) - 41,019.98 = 17.28.930.81
RESLILT
Segment result 1,52,852.99 116,661,940 -7.572.56 «22.9460.84 ~46,239.37 2mn
Unallocated corporate expenses 646,422 66 £46422 66
Operating profis 1,52, 883 216,662 {7.572.56) (22,960.54) (46,23937) (6.46,422.66) {3,53,650,54}
Fimange costs 59338547 47,100.0% 1,7582338 5320081 1788261 41.993.16 9293588 .52
Other Income 9692241 3E.813.20 ) E . 130,538 69 1,66,274.39
Income tasos - - - - » L =
Profit from ordinary activities (3,43 583.07) 2,08,375.10 (1,83.395.94) (76,162.65) (64,121.98) (5.57.876.13) (10,016,764 673
Extracrdinary item, net - - - B & - :
Mot profit / (loss) (3,43,58307) 20837510, (1,83,395.94) (T6,162.63) (54.121.98) (5.57876.13) {10,16,704.67),
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - 13,501.89 13,501,89
Net profit / {loss) (3.43,583.07) 2,08.375.10 11,83.395.94) (76,162.65) (64,121.98) (5,44,374.24) (10,03,262.78)
OTHER INFORMATION
Segmeni assels 1,10,95,609.61 2,05,99,152.09 14.50,111.57 £9,95.596.37 2.12,744.05 1.96.53.213.69
Unallocated corporate nssers 37,11,423.16 372142316
Total assets 1,10.95,609.61 1,08,99.151.09 14,50,111.57 59,95.596.27 212, 744.05 32142006 4.33,74,636,83
Segment linbilities R5.33,450.00 1.34,04,753.24/ 15,94,755.59 17,65,797.00 2.01,817.16 2.55.00,673.08
Unallocated corpornte linbilities 56,47496.15 BOMT 496,18
Total liabilities B5.33,450.09 1,34,04.753.24 15,94,755,59 17,65,797.00 2001.917.16 86,47496.13 3.41,48,169.23
Capital expendinires - - E - - - -
Tangible asscts 2,15.300.55 - - . - 17249 21547344
Intangible assets - - - - - - -
Deprociation 6.93,089.01 5,130 85 - 8,398.69 7273615 1037944 7.89,734.14
Amartization - - - - - 54,336.54 54.3360,84
Year Ended 315t March, 2020

{¥ in Hunilreds)

Retail Residential Diffice Warchousing FEC Unalloeahle Tutul

REVENUE .
Extemnal galey 30, 79.749.77 f33.585.44) 1.74.14381 - 1.66,7%90,09 - 33.87.098.23
Total revenue 30,79,749.77 (33.585.44) 1,74,143.81 - 1,66,790.09 - 33,57,098.23
RESULT
Segment result 79.376.10 (85,620.71) 748054 {27,156.69) 5245238 . 16,531.63
Urinllocated corpornte expenses 10,25,054 64 10,235,054 .64
Operating profit 79,376.10) (85,620.T1) 7,480.54 (27,156.69) 5245238 (10,25,054,64) (9.,98,523.02)
Finatice costs 6,68 93242 4725008 2,25,455.59 11815845 952931 24,051 51 11,07,797.31
Other Income 38,159.73 23,980,459 (1,901.14) - 305.09 60,441 38 1,20,985 55
[rcome taxes - - - - - - -
Prafit from ordinary activities [(547416.3%) (1.08,890.26, (2,17.876.19) (1,45315.13) 2282816 (9,88,664.77) (I9E5.334.79)
Extraordimary item, net = - . - - . o
Nt profit / (loss) (547410.09) (1,038,890 26) (2,07,876.19) {1.45315135) 2282816 (9,868,664 77) (19.85.334.79)
Oither Compreliensive Income - - - - . (9342.05) (9, 342.05))
Net profit / (loss) {5,47,416.59) {1,08.500.26) (21787619 {1 4531513) 22.528.16 (9,98,006.52) (19,9:4,676.84))
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment mssels 1,15,31,521.49 1,89,07,549.92 14,42,688.18 60,16,852.71 3,02,038.73 - 3,81,00,651,03
Einallocated eorporate nssets 36813130 36,81,313.01
Total nssets 1L15.31,521.49 1,89,07.549.92 14,47,688.18 60,16,852.71 3.02,038.73 368131001 418,51, 904.04]
Segment labilities 83,78,087.78 1,65,14,101.98 15,11,083.65 §,64,343.57 2,15,141.80 - 2,74,52,758.79)
Unallociated corporate Habilities 47,65,372.66 47,65372.66,
Total Habilities U.Wﬂ‘q 1,65,14,101.98 15,11,083.65 B.64,343.57 2,15,141.80 47,65372.66 3224813144
Capiinl expenditures - - - - - - -
Toangible azsets B,02,338.65 - - - - 4,023,649 80636234
letangnble assers = - - - - 4.899.10 4 49910
Depreciation 6,77.267.66 5,030,52 = 841472 T4 457,86 76,605.37 841.776.13
Amartizstion - - = - - B.651.74 8.651 74
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Notes to Flnancial Starements for the year ended 31t March 2071

Related Party Disclosures

Relnted Parties: Names of Relaied Parties and Relationships:
Enterprise where control exists

Holding Company

Subsidiary

Wirmmore Lessing and Holdings Lid.
Westfleld Enicrainment () Lid

Transactions with entevprises ever which key management prronnel/Direciors/Prrson ar elose membsers of the family ol's peryon are able tn exercise significant inflnence

1) Hardeastle Petrofer Privite Limited
i} Hardeastle Rostaurants Privele Limited (woe © 316t Auigsist 2019)
AiyShre_Amit Jutia-HUF

A person or close members of the family of a person is having significant influsnce ovir repariing eatity

i} St Latita D Jatin
Key Management Peronnel Gawrang Agrawal = Chiel Executive Officer (CED)
Sundéop Kumar — Chiel Financial Officer (CFO)
Minal Kardile - Company Secretary {1ill 11s Docember T
Vieda Jashi - Companry Socretary (w e f. Sth Jannury 2021)
Shatednu Sengupta-Direcior
Sanjay Soni-Direetor
Tnclonisre of Ty ions bet the Comp uy and Helsted Parties s Ouistanding Balances as at the year end.
Jist March, 2021 Hiwt Mareh, 2000
T in Hundreds) (T b Mimmabreads )
Eaferprise where Control Exisia
i) Winmore Leasing aud Heldings Lid
Tssse of 424000 Equity shares 6,147,865 60 =
i) Westfield Entertaiiment Private Limbted
ey 4,251 88 11.857.46
Intewest on laan 9501811 -
Professional fees incoms TN -
Lo grven 4D 630 62 16,008 0
Lonn received 48,.77.558.12 -
Loan repayment recsived 17193229 =
Amount due from related party = 13131167
Amouni due (16} relaied party (49,66, TRL5T) =

Trruusetion with eaterprises aver which key munsgement persannel/ DirectorsPerson or case members of the fumily uf u person mre able to exercise significunt lnflvence

(1) Hardensile Petrofer Privaie Limbed
Car reat incane
Car maimtenance reimbursenernt

Ouistanding balances
Astnint due from relited puity

(i) Hardeastle Restaurants Private Limited (w.e.f 310t August 2019

Income - geryice charges
Inceme-oifice Rerniture rental
E - reimiy for office p

Ohutstamding balamors

Lease deposit taken
Amouni due 1o relsied parties
Amoumt die from related parties

(i) At Jutla HUF
Redempaion of 64000 Redeemabie Preference share

A person o close meinbiers of the family of a person s having sigoificant infMuence over reparting entity

i) Lalits Devi Jatia
fssue of 20500 redeernuble prefercnce share

Key Manngement Fersonnel

RBennmernting
Amout paid bo related party

|\

3,000,060 3,000, 00
. 39574
295225 748,73
AT,T42 36 42345 18
18,867.497 12,909.53
9,963 04 10,182.93
591264 6,265.21
45,620 34 :
1243744 23472 60
{66.252.08) {64,252 08)
{54,571, 74) (13,1197
G16T4I8 21,064 12
8 19,833 40 F
2,025,000 00 -
5792671 1,33,115.97
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West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Notes to Fmancial Statements for the year ended 3158 Maich 2021

Leases
Company as Lessor

The Compary has entered livo regliiseed agreements with retilers in iespect of its mall & Kalynn, Theae loses huve noo-cancellable fease terms of 3 years and include 4 cinuse 10 enshla
upward revision of the rental charge every 3 years, if the iease 15 reaewed

The fliture minimum lease incomes in respoct of the aon cancellable period i thase leases are @ foliows

316 March, 2021 314t March, 2020
(T in Hundreds) 1% i Humdreds)
Mot later than one year L TR 70,589'33
Later than one years bug not Liter than five years 10,704 22 .
Laler than 3 years - E
Taotal fulure minimum payments receivalie 9925613 T0,589,33
Company as Lessee
The fiollowing i the break up of current and non-current lease linbilities as at March 31, 2021
(® i Hundrods)
A AL A AR
Lo 30it March, 2021 | 31yt March, 2020
Mo crnent - B
Current 17,606 79 B7.900 31
Total 17,606.79 &T.900.31
The follivwing is the movement of Lense Linhilities durieg the vear ended March 31, 2021
(X in Byodrad)_
Pariicvlars A At A Al
31st March, 2031 st Mareh, 2020
Halance nt the beginming 67,900 31 »
| Additiom [ 1129,86335
Finance cost accred during the year 4155 56 10,107.67
(Deduction duoe to ficngi 110003
Paymicnt of kease Rabilities £l 055 04 TLO0 T2
Balance ui the end 17,006.79 £7,500.31
The table below provides detalls ding the iml mansrities of lease lablities a3 a1 March 31, 2021 on an undiscounted bk
T in Hundreds)
As Al As AL
il Bl 1 315i Marel, 2030
Lss than one year IR DIT.CE TR0 T2
one o five years - =
Miore than five years - .
Todnl LA,017.68 T2,070.73
The company does not fice 8 Wﬁw%ﬁ-&mmﬂmmmmuuummm%wmmwﬂmwmlmMﬂﬂﬁq.mﬂwﬁmm
fall due '
Amaunis r I in & of Profit and Loss (T s Mundeeds]
Far the year ended For the year ended
Pariipitin March 31, 3021 March 31, 2820
Diepreciation expente on right of use aesets 45,436,894 6493168
Interess expenpe on bease linhility 4,159,568 10,107 67
related to shon torm leases and low value assels L -
Tatal 502044 TA039.35
Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress inchides expendituse incomed during

phaserd ingplemeriiation. The following expenditure i carried forward a3 capitnd work-in-progress

the implementation period for bringing a project in the condition of its kitenided use Capizalisation is done in the ratio of

3at Mareh, 2021 Jha March, 2020
T i Wundreds) (¥ b Hundreds)
Civil work fincluding material) 1391062 TrONZAS
Consultancy - 3036027
Employes costy - 10,188 75
Landidevelopment cost . 1LAT2 67
Orthor overhends 4585 8% B E6 40
177754 1.28.367.5%
Capitalieed Borrowing Costs

The borrowing cost capitalized during the year ended 318 March, 2021 win ¥ 60271 hundreds (3 1m March, 2030; 2 10,188.7% hundreds) and i part of caital workein-progress and

property, plant and equipoent,

Gratuity snd other Fost-Employment Benelit Plans:

The Company las o definod benofit gratuity plan. Every employes who has completed five yesr ar more of continuous service gets & gratulty on departure af |5 days saliry (lust dravn
saliry) for each completed year of sérvice ‘l‘.‘h‘-b-uﬁti;upﬁmhd.11|eii:‘llowh|mhlummmnmemwmeraﬂmnmmmhnhmmuﬁmﬂm
and the fianded matis and amounts recognized in the balunce sheet for (he respective plans.

Staterment of Profit and Loss

Net emploves benefi expeine tecognises) in employes coat

3lst March, 1021 311 March, 1010

(T in Hundreds) (¥ in Hundreds)
Curreni service cast 749710 s
Indereat cost 2,800.45 2,100 04
Espeuse recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss {Refer note 3) 10,706.95 TA917

Exp § i hnu:r-.-.--,-

¥




West Ploneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Notes o Financisl Staioments for the vear ended 31e) March 2021

Actuarial (gain) / loss on sbligation for the period
Return on plan assets excluding inferest income
Chanjge in ussets ceiling

Net actunrial (gaing) / lowses recognised In OCK
Balance Sheet

Benefii Uabiliry
Present value of defined bencfit obligaion
Benelit linbility

Changes in present valup of defined benefit olbligation :
Opening defined heneflt obligation

Interent cont

Cutrant wrvice cos

Benefits pad

Actuariz| {gain) | loss oo obligation

Closing defined benefit obdigation

The sssumptians axed In accounting for the gratuity plan sre sef ant befow:

Ditcount mie
Futore salary |ncreisses
Employes lumover
Expected rern on plan assets

The Company evaliates thess 2
(13,500 91 ) bundrads - 3150 March, 2020 2 9,342 05 hundreds

Amaunds for (he curment sail provious four vears are ns follovs

b2+ 1010
Gratukty
Defitved benafi obligation 3273610 42,8331.07
Experiente sdjustment on plan abilities (13.479.50) (T26.17y
Experience adjustment on plan assets H

Cantimgencies and Capital commitments

s

2735948

916

A suit for Inunetion was filed before the Delli High Court seeking isfinction ngsinst the Company from using the word *Metra”.
Thnmufddmnuluﬂ-wmimn’mmuhdpdud-hlhtmmﬂﬂhummmmn)wtzﬂ,ow.m undreds)
The Canpary is coaleting thie Haim and does not believe thut the procoedings will have aity material whverse impait on @8 finarclals

Diher clamio

1] Six comuiner cases hitve been fled by purchasers of units b & property developed by the Company In State Cansumer Foram

percentage of loading charged. The matters are pending disposal

3wt Mirch, 1021 31st March, 030
{2 in Handreds) in Hundreds)
(13,301 a1) 9.342 04
{1350191) 205
32,736 19 4283107
373619
4283307 2735948
280085 210394
789710 579213
(7.301.92) (1,764.63)
113,501 91) 9,342.0%
31,738.19 43.833,07
02071 W20
[ & 56%
T00% 7.00%
10:00% 10000
0.00% 0.00%

19,644 54

(AR EE 5]

Msumptions anmally bused o it long-térm plans of growih and industry stamtards The unrecognized net sctumrial loss / (gain) at 316 March, 2021 5 2

(¥ in Hundreds)

iy

17,867.2%
160 57

alleging shortfsll in ares of tenements grven and thic

1] &lﬂhﬂhﬂilﬁﬂhh&ﬂﬂm@nﬂlummwwmpmhwﬂhdmmﬁﬂw;wmumwrhoqhﬂ:h-llngdpmﬂmwhliﬂc

i) A time barved law suit is filed in Kalyan Court against the company inter alin clsiming ownership over part of land in ponseasion of the Croarpnny 42 Kalyss. The matter concerns approx.
i ther v sult Is also filed against the Company in Hombay

2000 wy I land area. A Wiit Petition arising out of an imdmuywﬁumdbyh!ymanhfﬂmrurtm

Higgh Court. Both the Suit a3 well as Writ Petition are pending m Kalyan and Bombay High Court, respectively

v A pecupant in the Residential Coimplex developed by the Company has filed a wit in » Kalyan Count asking for space for parkifg,
vl mm-d:uwmmmﬁmmmcMmmmmsmm deficiency of senvice and delay in giving possession.

The Company is contesting these dluims and does not believe that the proceedinis will have s material sdverse impact on it

The Company has reczived Notice of Demand from Maharnshira Value Added T department amoanting to 240,082 34 hundieds for fhe Financisl Year 2012-1). The Company has fled

appesl aghined the assssemont order.

The Coumpamy has eeceives Molice of Demand from Maharoshira Goods und Service Lo depastment smountig to £69, 564 45 lundreds relsted to Trans-1 credit wvatled by Company, The

Commpany has filed appeal sguanm the assessment order

The Company is contesting the afiscesaid matters und bs advised and belisves that the srocecdings ill have o adverse effect an les fiicials

Capital Commitments

Fstimated amount of coatracts rétaaining to be euecuted on capital sccount and not provided for
Other commisments*
Total

*ther commitments include development and constriction cost towards mined use properties to be incurred in futare,

'

3181 March, 2021
T b Hunidreds)

48,25237
3304, 164 62
33,53,416.99

31et March, 2020
1 in Humdreds)

LT 31
34,08, 940 45
520,017 %
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Notes o Financal Stwtements for the year ened 3151 Margh 2021

Supplementary Statuiney loformatise
Jlat March, 2021 30 March, 2030
Espenditure in forcigu cucrentcy (Accrual Bash) (% im Hundreds) (T in Hundreds)
Travelling expenes - -
Profesalonal foes -
Value of lmports
(iher materl 3360 87
Payments to Auditor:
a) As auditons fenchuding e 6,750,00 8,000,00
1) In other capacity 150 00 130,00
) Dut of pocket exgromses . :,
Tesl 6,900, 00 150,00

Transitien o Ind A% 116

Mimistry of Comatarte Affurs {'MCA™) through Compamies (Indian Ascounting Stnduids) Amendnient Bules, 201% and Companies (mbfian Az

ing Standards) Second Amendmen

Rules, hos notified Tnd AS |16 Leases which replaces the existing feuse stindand, Ind AS 17 Loases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the vecognition,

[ and g
AS: 116, effective annuil regoriiig perfod beginning Aprl 1, 2012 and upplied the standard to its lexses

e of loanes for boul lessees and lessors. It introduces o single, an-halatice sheet I wesouniing model for kessesn The Company has adopted fnd

The following tsble suinmares the impact of the newly adopied Ind AS 118 o0 the remilts for tie perrod ended 31 March, 2021 (2 m Hundreds)
For the Year Ended | For the Year Eaded
Partheulars 31at Mlarch, 2024 3is March, 2020
Incresse in Flnance cost 4859 38 L0, 10T 67
Increass in Depreciation and Amarisation cost 45,436 4% 64,931 68
Deareus in otler exprnses 4,053 04 TOM T
| Incremse)/Decrease bn Net Profic before 1ax =3, 754,60 2,963.63

Further;the net assetd and o lishilities s w) 315t March, 2021 have beer Ineresmed by Re 18300 77/03 Ta March, 2020: € 64,931 68) hundreds and 2 17,6406 7940 st Mazeh, 2000; ¥

7900 311 handrody respectivedy

Fair values of fi

masets and 0 il liahilities

mnimnudmmm-mmuﬂmum“mwmww“mem'

fal Tabifithes ap

amounis because of the shoet ierm nature of these Snancial instruinents,

The smorticed cost using cffsctive intevest rie (EIR) of non-current fnancial sssets. isting of security deposits i ot significanddy diffy

Fimancial nasets which are neither over due nur impaired inchude eash and cash couvalosts and secamity depomite.

The carrying valie of financial instruments by catepories are o follow

provimate the carrying

from the carrying amournt

(T in Hundreds)
Carring Yalue
315t March, 2021 31s1 March, 2020
Farticulary Fair value
Fair value ) Falr valsie throngh|
At Cost through o | Amartised cost Al Cost 1t o kina Falr value through OC1 Awvortised cant
profil er lows "ok

Financial Avsets
Cash and cush equivatents = - - 591,790.12 - . - 35,469 55
Bank bslance - - - 114,578 36 - - 103,010 18
Trade roceivakilen . = = 242519373 - - 19.79293.72
Luisng . - 7067 B9 49 - - 1268, 10857
Tovestments
Tirvestoment i subsidinry IZED 51870 - - BRI T -
Envistiment in equity - . 020 - s . L 2
Finnncial Lisbilities
Bosrowings - - - 1,88.63,327.30 . - . 1,70,74,498 3%
Redeeemable preference = - . 1238,5382] - . . 40,17.079.30
whares
Leuse Ruhillties . - - 1760679 . 67,900.31
Trode payables - . - 6,03,670.40 - - B 7.28,582.97
Otheer fineecanl Babilities - - - 11.77,530 6% - . - 228E, 156 40
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West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Stements for the year ended 3 15t Mareh 2021

Fair value hierarchy

The fisllowing is the hismrchy for determéning and disciosing the fair alue of financisl instilments by vubution technique
Leovel 1 - Quisted prices. (unadjusied) in sctive murkety for identhoal asety or listdlities.
Lavel 2 - Inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level | that gre observable (i the el ot Tiabifity, either divaetly i & as prices) or indirectly (e derived Erom prices)

Level 3 - Inputy for the assets or llabilities that are not based on otservibile macket dats {(onobserveble mpus)

The following table pruvhides the falr value measirement hierarthy of the Company’s assets and labilities

(% in Hundeeds)
Fair Valug )
Partieulan 31st March, 3021 Jist Mareh, 2020

_Level | Level Level 3 Leved | Level 2 Level 3

Flnancial Asseiy

Cath and cash eguivalents a -
Bank balance 2 .
Truhit receivihles .
Laoan o

lnvesimen (s
Imvestment in wubsidisry 3 - - -
Twestmiesii m equiliy - 30 - . on
Tavestmant in muetisl fand . - -

Vinnneial Liabilitics
Borrowings B L
Redecemable preference shares ] -
Lenun lishilities

Trade pavables . . - =
Other fiancia| lisbilities N + .

There have been no transdiers botween Level 1 e Level 3 during the perind

The carrying anount of cash and caah egulvalents,other bank balance, frade recervables and shor-iemm borrowings are combilerad 1o be the same as their fair valpes. The fair values of
Mlydmninw:ahdnﬁhﬁmcd:ﬂmmm;mmm.ﬁgm_

Tl rate of interest in respect of financial ussets and financial Gatilities Al each reporting date approximate the markes rate of interess Hence, fair vidues of fimancial assets and financial

Flnane

The Cormpany m expossd fo vanous financial risks ",m‘lqg'mlllnﬂﬂndhwumm.mmhmwmﬁmtinummﬁhmﬂlrhkudlqﬂ&ym.m
Cmmq'sﬁnmmmhmﬁnmb;rlhnwﬁufﬂiwwﬁThctumpany'lmkmwhwmbﬁiﬁlniduﬁh-uﬂuﬂmﬂuhhhmdhymmmy,m
u:mWﬁ:kMuﬂmnuﬁhmﬂ|nmhurhhldlﬂummlhmkimmmmﬂpﬂ'mlnmdmmwmmdnp&uﬁmmmthupmmrtummm
and the Company's activities. The Tompany does not engage i trading of financisl gssefs far specuiative purposes

Market Risk

Marked risk is the risk thai the market value of unseld inventory will flucture becouse of changes in markes prices. Market risk comprises (hres types of risk’ intérest rate risk_ currency
ik and other price risk, such a8 price risk and commodity rsk

Intereil rate risk

Imterest rate nisk is the risk that the fir value of fisture cash flows of & Brancis] instrument will luctunte because of changes in markes interest rates The: Company” s expaiure to the rick of
changes in market interest ries relstes primarily to the Company’s bong-term dobi obligations with foaring interess rates,

Th:r.iwpunywi:lhnmrmrlukwwlthmmdwmeummMmmlm

Inleresd rabe sonstivity

With all other varinhbes held comstam, fhe follbwing table 4 the ssmaithiity o s bly pesssibile changa i interes rates on Besting i borrowings, a follows:

¥ Tncrease’ Decrease i (€ i Hundreda)
AT Basis paint

xazi

INR ¥25 (35327.07)

INR .38 3832707

2020

INR 28 (45,207 21)

INR =15 43 207.21

Currency rish

Fororgn currency risk is the rick that the fr value or fiufuire cash Bows of an expaiure will flsctuste bacaute of changes in forsian exchange rates. The Company’s exposire 1o the fisk of
changes in foreign eachange rates i not much aa it relases primarily to the Company’s operating sctivities (when expense i denominated in a foregn currency)

i} Commodity price risk

The Company’s activities are expased to siec] and coment price risks snd theredore its overall risk management program focuses on the volitile natuie of the sitel and coment market, thiss

secking 1o mimmize potentinl sdverse effects on the Company's financial petf; an pecimmt of sch volatility,
Creilit Risk
Credst risk ia the risk of firsncial boss ta the Company if s o counterparty 1o o finuscial istroment fails 1 meet its contracrual obligations. Credit risk arises pringipally from the

Company’s receivables from lessorvicustomens and other siatutory, deposiis with reisulatony sgencies ind also srises from cath held with banks and fimncial institurions. The maximm
exposure 16 eredit risk i equal o the carrying value of the financial aswets. The objective of managing counterpary crodit risk in to prevend fosses in financial nssets. The Compeny assesses
the credit quality of the counterpanties, 1aking into sccount their financlal position, pest expericnce and other fuctors.

‘h.
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The Company limits its exposure to crodil risk of cah huwhhﬂuwmwdhﬁuhh’mdhmhuﬂlmhﬁnmmﬂwm;_mmu&nﬂh{hﬂmhhﬂmmw
to mezi a month's operational costs. The management mwmﬂwhﬁmmﬂ:mllwmurwlmﬁnﬂ&ndnmuﬁmmdm exsure that there it minimal wrplus cush in Sank
ACCOURLE mcﬂﬂlﬂ!mlmﬁﬂﬂulﬂﬂmwﬁdﬂmﬂmhﬂnuhtukm“r progerty on lease and ham't had & single instance of non-refind of security deposit on
vucating (he leased propeny. The Company does not hﬂnwcmdilciﬁ‘uhpinmmmhm&h

Thie Comprairy's masimum exposure 10 credit rigk for the components of the balnnce shoel ah at 3 1a Marel, 2021 und 150 Manch, 2020 in the carryng amounts ay mentioned in Note 8, 7,
11, 12,03 and 14

Ligquidicy Rivk

upldllymluumﬂﬂmhummmlk%mnmhnmmlwmnﬂwyL due. The Campany ges s tiquidisy risk by ensusing, as far as pomslble, that
Itwﬂ:hwmﬁﬁml@idﬂyt-umu:ti:nll.ﬂﬂiuwhndumcwﬁwﬁnammuhuldumudmhynrﬁnﬂlngmdﬂnﬂiylhm@ﬂe_mwlm

The table balow summarizes the maturiy profile of the Company's finansil lakilities

(X in Hundreds)

Particulary Less ihan 3 |3 months to 12( 1 year 105 yean Mure than S years Tetal

mnnih monthy
Ax sl Mgt March, 2021
Shodt term bormowings® - AR 77 855 12 - - 48,77.558 12
Long term borrowings® . . 39,69 07051 b4, 84,210 47 129,53, 290 08
Trade payohles 23127 54043913 . . 603670 40
Other fimancial liabifities 130,329 56 | 10,47 310,09 - - 11,77.539 65

1,93 560 83 | 646620734 59,68,070.5] 40,84, 219 57 196,12 58 3%
An nt 31t March, 2020
Sheort torm borrawinis® . 17L176,43 8,21, 860.27 : 995, 138.8)
Loy term bomowings® - 48192537 £5,60,459 80 57,54,203 94 1,51,05,584 87
Trade payables 3IBAT| 6220 - - 7.28,58297
Other financaal Haksliticn 0 J2BE.156 48 - - 22 B8, 15648

3722377 | 383451759 G101 41078 37,54 2000 94 191, 17465 o6

* Exchuding security deposits and Babilay component of DCCILPS

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital mangement, capisal includes issued equity cagital, shate pressum and all other equity restrves miiributable o the equity holders The prmary
objoctive of the Company' s capital management i3 1o masimize the shareholder valse and 1o ensurs the Company's abifity 1 continue & & “yoing concern”

The Cotpariy Tus' ot dlstributed any dividend 1o its shareholders The Compaay wionitors gearling ratia Le. iotal debt in proportion to fts overall financing strsctiure, | ¢. equity and dobt
TMMMWWMWMMIMMMWM.MT' P ges the capital e and makes adjsitments 1o i in the light of
changes in econoinio conditipns ind the risk charscteristics of the underlying assets

[T dn Hundreds)
As i As st
Pasl i 300 March, 2020 | 31 ot Mareh, 2020
Equity 1) 92.26,467 62 96,313,832 60
Barrowings 1.500,08,394.32 183,889,484 93
Less Cash and cosh equivaleni (501,790,123 {35,469, 55)
Total Debt L) L84, 16,604,20 LAJ A3 416,38
(Adjusted oot debt 10 sdusted equity maiio (M) 100 191
No changes were made in the objeciives, policis of processes for manapng capeal dhrmyg the years ended 315t March; 2021 and 314 March, 2020
Disclosure wnder the Micra Small and Medium Entorprises Developmeni Aci 2008 o the extent the C [ i from parties wader the Act,
femlar 3ist March, 2011 3wl March, 2020/
i (€ In Hundreds) [€ in Hundesds)

(1) The principal pmownt wnd the inerest due thereon remaining unpaid

to any supplice &b at the eod of each sceounting year
Principal smount due tb Micro and small

Irterent due o above but not claimed by the perties - .

{ii) The amecunt of ineren Hdbyﬁnhlwiuuwanﬁdnmnflhmmanmuwwhhhemﬁunhmm
made to the supplies beyond the appointed day during each sceounting year

(i The ameount of interest tue and pavable lor the year of delay in making pagrnent (which have bean paid bat beyond the apposted
day daring the yezr) but without addina the interest specificd under (be MSMED Act 2005

(iv)The smaoamt of interest accrued and remalning unpaid at the end of exch accounting yeur

() The smount of further intereat remaining due and payable gven in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues oy
above are actiially paid to the smull mterprise far the parposs of didsliowancs a3 & deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED. At 2006

Duies 1 Misro i Senall Entesprises have been determined to the extant such parties hove been mdentiflod o the basis of information calleched by Managemant ‘This kas boon relisd upon

th
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of
WESTFIELD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of WESTFIELD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss,
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the infarmation required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of

the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under provisions of the Act and the
Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report,
Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

L



Management's responsibility for the financial statements
The Company's board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian accounting standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting palicies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as 3 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Audi sponsibilities for the audit of the financial statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as

% a going concern.



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Grder.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)

g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Repart are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the IND AS specified under Section 133
of the Act;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 202 1, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013,

With respect to the adequacy to the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure 2" to this
report;

With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to our best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us :

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses
iii. There were no amount which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company

RAVI A. SHAH & ASSOCIATES

d Accountants
‘_/_'_‘_—

Ravi A. Shah & Associates
embership No. 116667
irm Reg. No.: 125079W

MUMBAI: June 7, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of the Our Report of even date to the members of WESTFIELD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE
LIMITED on the accounts of the company for the year ended March 31, 2021,

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanation
given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

iif.

Vi.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed by us and based on the information and explanations
provided to us by the management, the title deeds of the immovable properties, are held in the name
of the company:.

In respect of immovable properties taken on lease and disclosed as right of use assets, in the financial
statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not
have inventory, hence reporting under clause 3(ii) are not applicable and not commented upon,

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted
by us, the Company had granted unsecured loan to the holding company, being party covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), amount outstanding of
the said loan at the end of the year is Rs. 48.77 crores, the terms and conditions of the said loan are not
prejudicial to the interest of the company. As per the stipulated terms of the loan, no repayment was
due on or before March 31, 2021, and accordingly we donot express any opinion on the regularity of
repayment.

In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees, and security provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, as
applicable, have been complied with.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public in accordance with the provision of Section 73 and 76 and the
rules framed there under,

The requirements of maintaining cost accounts and records as prescribed by the Central Government
under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Compa ny.



vii,

viil.

%i.

xii.

xiil.

Xiv.

XV,

(a). According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory and other dues
the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues and other dues with the
appropriate authorities during the year.

(b). According to the information and explanations given to us clauses vii (b) of the Companies
(Auditors ‘Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained any
borrowings from any bank, financial institutions, or by way of debentures and hence reporting under
clause 3(viii) are not applicable and not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records
produced to us, the Company during the year did not have any term loans outstanding nor has the
company raised any money by way of initial public offer, further public offer and debt instruments and
hence reporting under clause 3(ix) are not applicable and not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to information and explanations given by the management, we

report that no fraud on or by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to information and explanations given by the management, the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion the company is not a nidhi company, hence reporting under clause 3(xii) are not
applicable and not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act 2013 where
applicable and details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
Indian accounting standard (AS) 24, Related Party Disclosure specified under section 133 of the Act. The
provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xiii} in so far as it relates section 177 of the Act is not applicable and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall examination of balance sheet,
the company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review, accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order, 2016
is not applicable and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.,



XV, According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

for RAVI A, SHAH & ASSOCIATES
hartered Accountants

embership No. 116667

Nrm Reg. No.: 125078W
MUMBAI: June 7, 2021
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of the Our Report of even date to the members of WESTFIELD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE
LIMITED on the accounts of the company for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

To the Members of WESTFIELD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting WESTFIELD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE

LIMITED("the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified
under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
udit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error ar
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operaling effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standard on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, the financial statements of WESTFIELD
ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED (“the company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2021,
and the related Statement of Profit and Loss and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. The material weakness was considered in
determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2021 standalone
financial statements of the Company and this report has affected our report dated June 7, 2021, in which we
have expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

A. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
ofed Accountants
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Westfield Entertainment Private Limited

Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2021

(¥ in Hundreds)

As at As at
BATSIEEYS Notes | 315t March, 2021 |  31st March, 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipments 4 9.,77.739.27 54,87,475.88
(b) Capital work-in-progress 81,698.23 4,58,524.12
(c) Financials assets
(i) Investments 5 0.20 0.22
(ii) Other finanical assets 6 789.50 789.50
Current assefs
(a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 5.68,748.16 2,02,410.38
(ii) Loans 8 48.77,558.12 2
(iii) Other financial assets 9 1,38,229.67 -
(b) Other current assets 10 36,182.96 309.18
TOTAL ASSETS 66,80,946.11 61,49,509.28
EQUITY AND LIABLITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 6,52,766.60 6.52,766.60
(b) Other equity 12 52,08,179.93 51,58,119.19
Liablities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 - 1,31,311.67
Current liabilities
(a) Other current liablities 14 8,190,999 58 2,07.311.82
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABLITIES 66,80,946.11 61,49,509.28
As per my report of even date
For Ravi A Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Waestfield Entertainment Private Limited
60»1 il
Gay Agrawal Sunil Kantilal Trivedi
Director Director
embership No.: 116667 DIN No.00021665 DIN No.00387797
D
#_5\».}
N2l
Veda Joshi
Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : June 7, 2021

Date : June 7, 2021




Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March, 2021
(¥ in Hundreds)
Particulars Notes | For the Year Ended 31st| For the Year Ended 31st
March, 2021 March, 2020
Income
Other income 15 1.19.987 .46 3.091.78
Total income (1) 1,19.987.46 3,091.78
Expenses
Other expenses 16 52.994.86 2,208 88
Depreciation 4 - 5,215.09
Finance costs 17 4,251.85 -
Total expenses (I1) 57,246.71 7,5813.97
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-1I) 62,740.75 {4,422.19)
Exceptional items 16(a) - 13,28,471.58
Profit/{loss) before tax 62,740.75 (13,32,893.7T)
Tax expenses
{ 1)Current tax 12,680.00 -
(2)Deferred tax ] -
Profit / (Loss) for the year after tax 50,060.75 (13,32,893.7T)
Other Comprehensive Income
A (1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.02) -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to - -
profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to J =
profit or loss
Total (0.02) =
Total comprehensive income for the year after tax 50,060.73 (13,32,893.7T)
Earnings per Equity Share 18
Basic earnings / (loss) per Equity Share (in 2) 0.77 (20.42)
Diluted earnings / (loss) per Equity Share (in %) 0.77 (20.42)
Nominal value per Equity Share (in ¥) 10.00 10.00
See accompanying noles to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalements,
As per my report of even date
For Ravi A Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Westfield Entertainment Private Limited

aurang Agrawal Sunil Kantilal Trivedi

Director Director
DIN No.00021665 DIN No.00387797

)
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Veda Joshi
Company Sccretary

embership No.: 116667

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : June 7, 2021 Date : June 7, 2021




Westfield Entertainment Private Limited

Statement of changes In Equity for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

(A) Equity share capital

Particulars As st Akat
31st March, 2021 J31st March, 2020
No. of shares (¥ in Hundreds) Na. of shares (% in Hundreds)
Equi LT ibed and fi
Opening 63,27.666 6,52,766.60 63,27,666 6,52,766.60
Add: Issued during the year = - . :
Less: Bought back during the year . - - =
Closing 65,27.666 6,52.766.60 65.27,666 6,52,766.60
{B) Other equity
(Tin Hundreds)
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Seenrities Premivm Retained earnings Total
Account

Balance as at st April, 2019 64,66,183.87 24,829.09 64,91,012.96
Additions / (Deductions) for the year - (13,32,893.77) (13,32, 893.77)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - 5 =
Total changes during the vear - (13,32,893.77) {13,32,893.77)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 64.66,183.87 (13,08,064.68) 51.58,119.19

(¥ in Hundreds)

Reserves and surplus
Particulars Securities Premium Total
Retained earnings
Account

Balance as at 18t April, 2020 64,66,183.87 (13,08,064.68) 51,58,119.19
Additions / (Deductions) for the year 50,060.75 50.060.75
(Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - (0.02) (0.02)
Total chunges during the year - 50,060.73 50,060.73
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 64,66,183.87 (12,58,003.95) 52,08,179.92

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the financial statements.

As per my report of even date

For Ravi A Shah & Associates

) ed Accountants

R tion No.; 125079W

Membership No.; 116667

Place: Mumbai
Date : June 7, 2021

NeA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Westficld Entertainment Private Limited

rang Agrawal
tor
DIN No,0002 1665

\2
Veda Joshi

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Daste : June 7, 2021

s - )
Ao
Sunil Kantilal Trivedi
Director

DIN No.00387797




Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended March 31, 2021

(T in Hundreds)
For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Operating Activitics
Profit/(Loss) before tax 62,740.75 {4,422,19)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash Nows
Depreciation : §215.09
Sundry balances write back (4,040.15) -
Interest expense 4251.85 -
Interest (incame) (1,15.947.31) 13,091 .78)
Net Cash Flow (used in)/from Operating Aetivities (52,994.86) (2,298.88)
Movements in working enpital ;
{Increasc)Decrease in other financial nssets (49.042.98) -
Increase/(Decrerse) in other non financial Liabilities 6.16,727.91 1.98.550.77
Cash (used in) / gencrated from operations 5.14,690.07 1,96,251.89
Income taxes paid (48,553,78) (309.18)
Net cash flow (used in) generated from operating activities 4,66,136.29 1,95942.71
Cash flows from investing activities
Construction costs incurred (CWIP) - (23,410.96)
Proceeds from sale of leasehold land and property, plant and equipments 48.86.562.51 -
Unsecured loan given {48,77,538.12) 2
Interest received 26,760.62 3,091.78
Net cash flow used in investing activities 35,765.01 {20,319.18)
Financing Activities
Unsecured loan received - 26067171
Unsecured loan repaid (1,31,311.67) -
Interest paid (4.251.85)
Net cash flows from financing activities {1.35,563.52) 26,671.71
Met {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3.66,337.78 2,02.295.24
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 20241038 115.14
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year 5,68,748.16 2.02.410.38
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand -
Balunces with bunks:
= In current accounts 2.64,617.66 2,02.410.38
Deposits with bank 3,04,130.50 -
Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement 5.68,748.16 2,02,410.38
concilintion of Liabili i ti 5
Farticulars 31st h'-:.:l'::l 2020 Cash Flow Non cash changes st MTr:I: 2021
Long term borrowings (including current maturities of long term Debt) L31311.67 (1,31,311.67) E -
i As at

Farticulars 315t MA:r::; 2019 Cnsh Flow Non cash changes 315t March 2020
Longe term bormowines (meluding current maturities of long term Diebt) | 04,639 96 26,671.T1 1.31,311.67

As per my report of even date
Shah & Associates
cuniants

e@' ration Mo 125079W

Mefubership No.: 116667

Place: Mumbai
Date : June 7, 2021

(St

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Westfield Entertain

Gdprang Agrawal
Director
DIN No.0002 1665

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai

Diate : June 7, 2021

nt Private Limited

At
Sunil Kantilal Trivedi

Director
DIN No.00387797
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Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
Notes fo Finnncisl Statensents (o the Year ended 31sr March, 2021

Corparate |isformuthon

Weallidd Enkeriasnment Privale Limited is isvolved m d My
Limingd

of maxed e propenty in Indi. It @ 10U subsidary of Wt Proncer Properties (indis) Priveie
Segnificant scvounting policies sdopicd by the Company are as ndar

Hails of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance with Tod AS
Theaa fi

have b preparail in waummmmmmummiaaurmcwum.mmm'mwuummmﬁ,
{taudam Aroomnimg Standordi) Rules, 2645 s amcnded From iime 4 Lme

Aggmiin e puolicica hive bom consistently apghied to all the vears pressnced excopl whiors 3 rewly msued sccounting standard i imitlally adogted or 2 fevisbon w0 an eisling seoousting siandard requas
 thange in the accoumbing policy hitbeno in e

The b f ma have b p on ah l vost banas, wocept fir certain i } which are = nir values 34 the wnd of each reperting period, 09 explasned in the

Currrmitien-currenst claosifleation

Avsetn sl aibilstaes: ave classilied e Crarent and Moo Current as' e the Complin's aonal operaiing ey Hated o the natarg of activily cormed oub by the Conpamy il ihe period beiwee tic
procusement and neafisation i cash and cash courvalenss, Lhe Comgiamy ey aszertalned N operatiig cyci & |3 months for tha parpess of CurrontMoa Cuarrent clssailicalion of sssety and lsbiliticn

Une of Estimnien
Preparsiion of Financesl Statcencnts in conformity with Ind AS repiiees mansgomeist 10 make patlster. snd sesmprions that affixs the reponiad amounts of assers snd libilitics wod disclosure of

conlingend liatisics a (he date of the finoneig! datemens and the rewults of aperations diring the reponing period Althesih these exiimaies are based upon masagemont’s best knowledge of curranit
everts md actioiia, sctainl imliid enald Sifer Eroen these estimaies

Froperiy, Mani and Egeipment

Fropeny, Mant and Equipnnest are siaved s oot bewy fitfcad clspr and liwseg 4F sy, Cost compirues the cont of aquisrion aid am: attributabie cout of bringing e sse o i
warkmg combition fix 1t micnded e B g Cota relnting o seoquisiion | comatruction ( development of iangible sessts. which tales mabetantial pesiod of e o g resdy K i intesded we o
iy includud 10 the extemt ther relniz 1o the pened bl such ssssls e rady jo 5 pal o we

Value af lensehoid land w d arver e rosp ressdunl besse poriod

Sultiequent meniursment

Subtequent conty =ro inchuded in the asset’s earrying smount or g assel, & aIprop cily wihaem i 16 prodiable thas funire seonomue bongfity pmsocimed wath e aleon wall fow to
‘the Company and the cout of the neer ean be measirnd refiably, All aiber repars and mai ore charyed 1o of ol o | durimg the reporimg penod in whach they sre inearmd.

D recognihion

WEwﬁW“WMMMMﬂw“ﬂMnM;&MuMNHmrmmbumunwnﬂhmww.m i foranes between Lhe
et disposal sroceeds snd ke camrying amesnt of the sasel s remgrisad I the Stalesncie of Profi snd Lose in the periad of de-recogmition

Property, plant and equspmuent hedd fior nslic i valuod ut bower of thoir carrymg amounta oisd pot reafirsble vnhuss, Any wriicsdown is reeognired iy the Stascingt of Profit 1ad Lost
Deprecistion on Fropeny, Flaat and Equipmeat

I'.‘upmilpmunlluﬂﬂumiﬂthnnhlmmlndHﬂcmlldwﬁuMMmddﬂhﬁwm-wﬁdﬂmuﬂmmmmﬂwmmufw&
refloct much wsefial life, on the bass of lochmeal evaliation msde by the mans gement

[Bustding | 30 yexs ]

Laeumcivale] oo are mmdrtises] on (e basks of durstion and ather ienms of e
Deprecesteot method. wseful I mnd roshusl vale are revicosd peredically.
The Compparty depreciaies assels conting less than T 5 000 over theeir wiefid lives

Tha carryiny smous of PFE. 1a reviewed persodscaly for impmmment bascad on intorial | exterual fackors. An ispairmacni lon i eneomiised wherpver e esmying sincant of nisels exceds iy reeaversbia
emmount. The recoverable smoutit i the greater of the sssel's et selling price and vaku is use

Capital Work la Progress

Capital wark in jrogres w staisd at sl less imgiairmant kesses, if et Cost comprines of cxponditisnns incumed in respect of caplial projects undir development mnd nchudce sy sinbutsbls / allscabls
ot i ether incdcntal expenges, Nevennss camod, i sny, from wuch copical project before capstabastion are adjuted ngainst the capital work, in progress

Leases

Leawcn where the besor effaetrely resning subwmantially &l e risks anad bencfits of ownorsbhip of the lessed ansct, sro clasuifiod osoporating leasss
Amostisation of lesse gonl e recogifsed e Cajitsl work in progress oo smught fee B over the leass ferm

Bevenue Revognitlan
Blevrnue it rcogmised 10 1he ouical (i |8 probiable that ihe casoamie benefits will flow 1o the Compamy and the revenue exi e reliably ineavurd snd thers exinks certainlly of ils recovery

finigrasy
Rtvenne i repogneed on @ lme proporion bass wing imto socount the arsour ouisading e G rats spplicsbic.

Divighsmds
Revenue i recognesed when the Compam, 's right 1o reegive the payiment (s sstablished, whach is gereraily when sharcholders spprove the dividend.

L)
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Westfield Entertalnment Privaie Limited
Netes tn Finuneial Statements for the Year ended 300t March, 2621

limgialrment of Assets

Al each halance shot date. minsgement feviews the camyung btiwounsts of aaacta i detenining ihether fbere iyt indlcation hat the aeaets were impasred 1 sy such mdication exists, recoversble smount
of the st is sstimaiid in anker b determine the exiors of impeirmens.

Al isat’s rocoverable stount is the higher of m msel’  or caali-generating wnie's (CGL) faar valee bess coats of desponal and iox valoe in ose: Rovoverable smouni i detérmived for an individual asser,
umbess the musot dooa ot goosrate cash milows fhat arc largely independant of e from other sssste or yroups of ssvsis Wham the carryurg senowit of an sssol ar COU excoods its recaverable smouss,
the nsset in comidered impudred sed is writkon down in Ha rocoverable smoine

T mckernminng v abue i e, hmmmﬂwlmdﬂuﬂdhhm=dumqnmuimumﬂuu@urmmhtmmmhmmmplmndm
mhq-mﬁcnrhemuInmmtwmh-mﬂd-pmlmmmqm“mmmlrmm oo e b bd i e o moded 13
waed, These inna nre Ty it il pacted markes pricer ar sther milable fiir valu indesion.

lacame Toves

Tax expents comprises of cartent sad defiorred i Current income tay (4 miciered 2t the s expeciad 10 e pod fa the L anthoribies m accondance with the incoma Tax Act, 196 | Duferred
ingoene tas. teflects the impact of cument year tsming diffarences. botween table income md sccouniing moome fot e vear mnd roversl of tarming differsnces of eerhier voars. Deferred (ax in mesmmred
buased o the 1 rates and the e liws criacted or substardrvely enacied by the balmes shoel date.

At ench hatanez sheet dafe the Company re-amssnes serooogniend delemmd tax sesen. I recoghoes anrcongnized defirod tix asscia 10 the gxim thial i bing bocome resscrnbly cenain thil nilfioent
Futzre Lavcabsle imeene: witl be nvailable mpsina which such defireal tio ssseis can be realiced

Cuarrent and deferred tas wr recagmacd in prafiy or Yoss, evecpt when they relaiz o fiem thol s ased i Other Conprcionsive Incoume o Ginoctly in equity, in which cisp, (b pureat s defermsd
tax wre lay reoogniscd i Oihis ey ive Income or dsroetly i equity reapoctively
Earnings Per Share

himhﬂmﬂunmwmviﬁqﬂw-ﬂummwuﬂtﬂhﬂ o the period ittribnitbide s equity sharcholiers by the wethicd peermgs mumber of gl shares oursipndig durmg il
reporting pariod, Wilghied sverage nuber af equity’ shares. citsiandimg during ihe penod i adjusied for even) like bonus ibsse, bomat elament in 8 rights istue (o existing sharchokers, whaie wplit and
s shars skt (ennsoindathon of dhare

For fhe purpoas of caloulariing dilutad ssmings per skare, the nat profi oc loss foe the period atributable to squity sleholders md the
e e jusied for the offexts, ol ll diliive poscitlal eqaily shares

phiedd svernge nusmber ol ehares ourstanding danng ihe penod
Proiisk

A priviaion s Tecognied when (he ooy hqmoﬂwuimﬁﬂpﬂnmndlhwﬂ:mﬂmmﬂﬂwurmw b requaed 1o seitke die obligation and m respocs of
whirh o reliahie extimiits can b made. Provisions ar not disoounted to their prosom valus 2nd bre determmed bosod on bext esti requanad to sertic e obliguting ut tie halance short daie These ae
revizwed af each hulance shoot date and sdjusted vo reflect the curning bou extimatss.

Caah und Cash Equivalests

Cnl-ﬂnlhqmdsumlhhimmmwkmﬁlmunhduﬂummmm i ergnal sttty af three menibo o low which s sibject 10w oelgniTican rigk of
champey i unlae

Contmgent Liabiliies

A coutimgent lsbidiey v a possible obiigation that arses fom pest evens whoe will be by the ar of ong of more uaterts future events beviond the contrisl
dhmw-mdhmmnuuummunmpmhﬂuﬂwmwﬂhwolmwﬂh“mmmmmAwwqm“um
m—nﬂmwktﬂﬂlmhmhwm&mhn—nﬂm The Compens does not reoognrise & linbality bus. dinclosss 1y existenos i the finsncisl
stalomendy

Fimnngial intruments

Fimancisl Astets
Financial wasers arg reongmized when the Cnatpany beconses & party 1o the eonstactunl provisions of the Cim imidial r a d mmnet 18 recogrsed uk fawr valug, 1o case of Finanesd
wdisth which aew recognised ot far velos through profit and bow (FVTPLY, s 06 coH i cscd in the of (ofit usd Woes. |m olher eanes, (he Eromanctbon cout s alirbisted b the

scquisition valueof the finanoial sssct

Financis) assses are sl iidy elassified pid dw inexd oo, fair vl trough profil and loss (FYTPL), and foir valos through otbher comprofensive lscame (FYOC, Frnancial assas o
not reclamificd mibscsguent i thor eeognition, exep i s in ihe permd the Company changes (is business model for munaging finencial asscla.

Al imvestmcala in quity stnments claasified undee Tinsncial nssets are initially messurod af Tait valne. the Compuany iy, o bl recognition. (revecably cloct 1o menars the e elihier = FYOTT

or FVTPL. The Conspany makes slection 1o mewsurs (be seme ® FYOCT basie Far value changes. excluding dividends.on ﬂp‘ll:g d m FWOCH aro rooognired 8 O] Arsousis
recogrinsod in 0T e nod subsoquenthy nechesifiod to the Sunsmont of Proft and Loss. Dividend iacome an imve i equiny e 3 “ether inoome” i Statement of Frofiy asd
L.

The Compauy derocagnises a finarcial st when (e cantractual right fo the cesh Nows from the finaneial asset expire, o¢ it tranafers the controciunl nights 1o recesve the cash flows fivm the st
Bmprsisrneni ol Brnvs ial neests

Expectad crodi| losses an d for alt ik sl aaais to petial recogmition ather than fnancial mocts i FYTPL caegory. For Minancial ssscis ather than trade roeeivoliles, ae por Ind

AslwmuEmwmlzmwmh—hwaMumwmﬂndummumﬂnmhwﬁhmumhwI-—u-lm

wince: {in initlnl rocogtion. Thet experied crodif nsees sre masswrod 09 lifislisne expocted crodit foases 1f the credit risk an finascisl seset ificaatly smee it imitinl rocagmition. The Compan ™

unhwmuduu-ummrmrmmMMMnmmuMnumwummmmwmmmmm
; lesen anid s sre rveogiised in £ ol Profi smd Loss.

Flaneial linbilithes

Financial liabilities are recogaised when the Company becomes 8 party 1o pvivions af & & Finmmeial habaliies are inially measured ol e moartised eost wiless af il

rocognishon, thery are classified s fair voloe through profit and lowm. 1a case of irads mbiuhwwlﬂl} recognsed . fair valve sod sobsequently, thead Babilition oro held at amartised coal. using
fhe eiffeciive interest metlhod

Financial 1 at mnawrtines] coul uming the ETR method Financial lishilisizs camed w1 fair value theough profit o toan are messcnad i far value with all changes in Coir
;dwmwdnlh:&l:umufhnﬂ.-dtm

A finnneial fiabillee o d ised when the clhiigst) speficed i the contract s dischanged, cancs lad v expires

Finuncial amets and labilities ave offsct and the net smount ix veporied bt the belanee slicet wliere (bors i & legally snfitrszable right 1 alfi the recegnbeod amoaniy and fhere is o intantion to setle on &
net bk o reabize the asser and scitle (he Nabillly Iy, The lgatly enforcestir right must not be contingent on futuee cvents ind mast be coforeasbi in (he narmsl course o Mainess and in
(e evemt al defuly, wdwwmmdmmuwm
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Watfickd Enfertainment Privare Limited
MNoted 1o Fisnancisl Statesaents for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

Siguiificant i judg wnd

i

The icn off Gnancinl ; : mmﬂﬂmmumhmhmﬂmﬁmMmdenﬂw

sccompanying disclonures, inclading the di listulitien. Uinceriainiy sboul dicte ssdbunsprions and cslimates could resulf i outcomes thit require 3 material sdustiient be e errving
mdmulﬂ:hﬂmﬂuhﬂum

Estimmtes s sanisiajitions

The kecy assumplions concerning the {uture and othier key soutes of extimation tncerthinty ot the year el date, thal Frve 3 aigniflcnt risk of emmmg & mntérpl odustmen 10 1 comrying snounts of
amacs and liabilitios willin the nexs financial year, sro described bolaw, The Company based itn sssumptions aod extimutes on parsinctors available when the were:

d, Exigting
und fjticins shoul ltare dey hmnn.mdwpihnhm;hmummmm-chqwdmmﬂmcm Mwmm
in-the ausummpstions when they ocoar

(o) Variud Bves of property, plamt s squpenem

At theseribed i ihe sgnificans nocounting poticies, the Comparty eracws the estinuted useful lives af jimpens, plas snd expuipenent 8t the cnd of each reporting penod. Thes: restsessmets may rest in
Mﬂlh&wmumhmmpﬁmmm

() Classification of nsseis and linbilities into ewrrent snd ooa-current
The mamageiced elasaifies the puscts mid labifities o cament and non-curreni categones based oa the aperating eycks of the Suimeas,
(e} Dimpiairanent of miscts
I escining |mipadrment, mansgement ectimates the recoverable smouris of each aaset of CULI (im case of non-financial asscts) based on expoctad Nt curi Mows snd wses an extiaiad inserent mic 1o

descount them. E jon relales o plions shioul fsture cash Newa and the 4 af o msitwhhe d i d Inir value levs costs of disposal, rocent marken imemsactions ane
taken latn noconme.
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Woestfield Entertainment Private Limited

4. Property, plant and equipments

{T in Hundreds)
Gross Block Deprecintion / Amortisation/Impairment Net Block
Ason Ist April Additions Deletions As on 31st March As on Ist Charge for Deletion  As on 31st March As on 31st As on 31st
2020 2021 April 2020 the Year 2021 March 2021 March 2020
Leasehold land 55.24,753.22 - 45,40,372.00 9,84,381.22 1,91,508.84 - 1,57,386.46 34,12238 9.50,258.84 53,33,244.38
Building 1,59.275:22 - 1,30,896.12 28,379.10 5,043.72 - 4,145.05 B9B.67 2748043 1,54,231.50
Compound wall 10,391.17 - - 10.391.17 10,391.17 - - 10,391.17 - -
Total 56,94,419.61 - 46,71,268.12 10.23,151.49 | 2,06,943.73 - 1,61,531.51 45412.22 9,77,739.27 54,87.475.88
(% in Hundreds)
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation/Impairment Net Block
Ason Ist April Additions Deletions As on 31st March, Ason Ist Charge for  Impairment As on 31st March Ason 31st As on Mst
2019 2020 April 2019 the Year 2020 March, 2020 March 2019
Leasehold land 55,24,753.22 - - 55,24,753.22 95,754.42 95,754.42 - 1,91,508.84 53.33,244.38 54,28,998.80
Building 1,59,275.22 - - 1,59,275.22 - 5,043,72 - 5,043.72 1,54,231.50 1,59,275.22
Compound wall 10,391.17 - - 10,391.17 170.90 171.37 10,048.90 10,391.17 - 10,220.27
Total 56,94,419.61 - - 56.94,419.61 95,925.32 1,00,969.51 10,048.90 2,06,943.73 54.87.475.88 55.98,494.29
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Wesifield Entertalnment Private Limited
Mwten 10 Flanniscial Stuiesments For the Year mded 315t March, 2021

Inventments (Noa Currenit Financial Asseis)

An i Anwt
Mt Mareh, 2031 st Murch, 2020
¥ im Hhanddreids| (0 im Husdreds)
Unapirited
Investmvent in Equity Shure
lmmnlhmepluhﬁmh-nﬂmumm—LWMdtlﬂr\mmm{alaMm:n:tnqu_-,-:tue_: 020 [
0,20 011
¢her Finanrial Avsets {Non Curvent)
Auai Az np
Hur March, 3011 Mat March, 2020
(T in Humdred) (8 i Handreds)
Lsecured comidored eua
Socurity deponits TRIM 90
89 50 THY.S0
Caahi mnil Bank Balunces
Azl Avai
st March, 2021 It Mareh, 2020
(T im Hundreds) (¥ in Hundreds)
Carh and Cash Equivaiests
Cesh e hand .
Halarcer with hawks;
~ [ purrenl meonnls 364,507 66 L01di05%
Depasits with bank 304 130 30 -
5,68, 74416 THLAI03N
Lasas (Curvend Financial Asseta)
Asnl Asal
314t Mareh, 2011 st Mareh, 2020
(2 im Hundreds) I in Pindeeds)
Ly v relateed panie 487745512 3!
457755012 -
The detnils of loans, guaranters el investusents uniler Scction 186 of he Conigiardes Aet, 2013 reud with the Companies (Moetings of Board mnd ity Powers) Rales, 1004 5i¢ 3 follows:
{1} Dieznids ol loans given by' the Company iire- s followic (T in Hundreds)
Nasie Helatlenahip As ot
3181 Misrch, 3021
Wi Piovcer Mroperies Cedial Privale Limided Holding T ompany ARTT A2
The above keen was grves o the haldiyg company foe i bannes srnines snd it mts & ™ pa.
1) Thore s guaranbiss issned ve investinents ehks by the Company im svoonlamee with ssetion |18 of e Companles Act 3073 read with rales isrmed themundes
Oher Financisl Azsety
Asm Annl
S8 March, 2021 e Murch, 220
(¥ im Hundredg) T in Hundredi)
Amounia reesivable lowurds ssle of leaschold land sod plans and AT 42 SR -
Inberest rocepvable LN =
1 332967
hiher Cirrent Assety
As As at
Fok March, 2001 Jhan March, 2020
(T i Humsfred) (T I Tluisdreda)
Income tax peid dnet of proviskon of € 11680 () husdrds) I, 1829 dmsin
36,1815 .18
Share Caplial
As uif An sk
Mt March, 1021 a1 Murch, 2020
(7 b Hnddeedy) (T in Hundreda)
Authirised Share Capieal
93,8050 Equaity Shares of € 10 each GIEASE 00 SIRETEO0
{31% March, J030 © 935K 550}
336,862 Preferenes Shares of ® 100 cach 336862 00 33 RA2O0
(Flat March, 260240 - 336 BAT)
EXEREI] (XS]
Lisieil, Subserilicsd amd Paid-up Shaire Capitsl Fully paid op
6527 666 Equity Shancs of € 10 cach 6,523,764, 60 (AL 76,60
(315t March, 2020 - 6527 6eb)
Tatal BT 51, T, &l
Retonciliption of sliares onistanding ai bejinnieg and st enid of the yesr
Equity viares '
An ot 3t March, 2021 Asat 3 at March, 3020
Mg 1% I Hunirels) Mins 1% lin Hursdreda )
Al bepannmyg ef the year 65,27 6l G52, T 0 65,2766 6,52, Tib. 60
Lasiied during the year 2 E * 2
Duiseandung at end of the year 6527666 .52, T G0 65,27, 60 1,5 2 Tt )

W
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Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
Note 1o Finsoclal Statements for the Year coded 3151 March, 2021
Terma/ rights atiached to Equity Shares

Thes Compeary has ouly 000 class of cquity shares kaving por valoe of ¥ (0 per share Eucl holder of equity shiares is crtitlod & ona vote per share. The Company declarcs mad pays dividonds in fndmn
rupes. The dividend proposced by (he Buard of Disectars is subjier 1o appeoval of thi shrchelders m ihe asing Ansusl General Mooty

Dhrmg the yoer ended 31 Mml.u:mdwﬁnmmmuwww&mﬂmﬂmuu "Nl (31 Miarch 2020 “Mily

Mﬂﬂwﬂﬂ'lmurﬂlﬂ[‘m.ﬂlhﬂh'lﬂm'_\m“ﬂHmhmh!mmmﬁhCm,ahdﬁmhmunﬂpﬂmnﬂm.mwmmudbum
pEnpertive (= the number ol equity shiares hild by the sharsholders ' '

Shiares bele try hodding company
Ot of ceuiity’ e by e Conipamy, shans held by its holding conipasy are g belon
At Aa ai
e March, 1021 Sot Mareh, 2030
(% In Hundredy) 4 bn Hundrsdi)

‘West Finneer Properties (India) Private Limited, Lolding camgany

68, 27,066 Equaty Shares of £ 10 esch f82766 60 ,52,756.60
(3het March, 2020 6327 66}

The bolding company fu 1%, sharcholding widh 190 shares keld joiily with Mr. Banwarksl Jitis, M. Busdeep W, Mo Minnl Kardile, My, Caerang Agarwal, Mr. Anll Gupia and Mr.
(P Adukin n netmines on beknll of e Comgrany - ; -

mﬂhmhﬂhumhls“llwhlhfm

Name of sharehifder As at 31st Mareh, 3031 As un Y130 March, 2020
wos %4 halding in the Noa " holding in the chass
lan
Equity shares of 2 10 sach fully paid
West Pioneer Froperiies (sdis) Privaie Limact BEITAGE 100N 6427 it Loy
As per roconds of the Coampany, mehading ity regsscer of sharehald i the & rocanved from shischaoldon mogunting benefiesal maeress. the sbove sharsholdag reprssenta both legal

o bemeficinl vwnership of 1he shares

As mt As at
Aip March, 7031 Jhat March, 2020
. 1% Im Hundreda) % in Handrads)
Securities Fressiom Acoui
Halince ax per last Mnancinl sabemerts A Gh IR HT B n6 1IR3 KT
Closing Balanee £, 656, 183.87 64,66, 18087
Sarphey in Statement of Profie ami Loss
Balsisesr ng poe-lant finnncial sasermenis (1308 064.06%) 241008
Profle Lose ) for tha yenr 00 78 (133249377}
Hogmed an socount of change in fair vabee of financial inttrmmts jamy :
et Surphas in Statement of Profic und Loss 11158 000.9%) L1306 58]
Totsl Reserves and Surphes 32,08, 72.93 515811405
Burrowings (Non Carrent]
Ax at Avwl
Hhst March, 2030 30s1 Murch, 200
(T in Hundreds) (Fin Humibreds)
Unserueed lonm fom relsted party (refior Mate 20) - LAAAT
- [T
(hher Carrent Liabilities
Azt A i
30t March, 2021 st Marvh, 3020
% in Hundredu) (% isn Mianelveedn)
108 payable 259422 1283 8%
Exponscs payrble 164231 G02RET
Advance towartls sado of lmd o nushil [NERJEN 200,000, 00
019,994 55 207 511K
Inconie Year Ended Vear Ended
30at Murch, 2021 14t March, 2020
(€ i Hundreds) (T in Husdrods)
Other {ncome
Ilgress From bank finod deposits 30,639, 20 35078
Imigrest from oihers Al .
Sumdey balmnces wrsiten hack 4,000 1% =
1,19, 987 46 100078
Other Expenses Year Ended Yewr Ended
Jlut March, 2021 st Mareh, M0
% im Hundreds) ¥ in Hunalrods)
Licang remil - hod
Travelling nod Cosvevance: 3 £ (PR
Roiss & Twnas Tins -
Legal ondd Professionl fees 40,650 77 T
Aaxlit leey G0 RD o0
Filing foes 7 0
Seeurlty expensss 10,550, %4 -
Miscellaneous oxpetisss 109.72 (L}
52994846 129886
Eacrpiional Hems Vear Eaded Year Ended
Fint March, 2011 et March, 2030
¥ i Handoeds) (T in Hudredd)
15m3 on seeount of unparment of capeal work i progroe - LER L i ]
Lo an soccotant of ipairment of tenyible ase1 (compound walll 1 11048 90
. 133847158

-
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Westficld Entertainment Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Yenr eoided 3101 Mareh, 2021

Finance Cont
[nicront eipensss.

Earnings Fer Share

Profif Loss) after iax (¥ u Hundreds)
Weaghted mverage numbver of sharss (s
Baic & dihuaed earmings per share ()

Segmental Reporting
The Compasy b engnped in & sergle segment b af develop

Related Perty Diselumnres

Names of Reduted Parties nnd Helstionships:
Conteal 1

Hokng & onany

Llmnatz: Hidading € ompany

Ky Marmagemeni Paronnel

Tranwictions with relaied parties

Inberzs. il ewt Loan
Intereni received on laan

Capital Comminments £ Nil (Previoas Yenr € Nil)
Commitients amd Contingeni Lialslities:
Grunramtors

That Cornprany bhas not provided sny gusrsatas.
Laniey

Year Ended Year Endesd
Jtut Murch, 2021 30wt Mareh, D2
10 i Hsiebrecds) % in Humilredi)
4 251 88
4,351 88
Hut March, 3021 Wit Mareh, 3000
5, i) 7% (I35 7T
63,27 6165 00 G427 66000
L (20,42)

of mved (s property in India

Wt Mo Propeatis. (iradia) Privine Lislicd
Wimmere Lessng and Holdiigs Limsied

Me. Lemmrang Agarwal - Disector
. Suail Kestilal Trivedi - Direcior

Mingd Kordiks - Company Secrviary (0l 3 lsi Deconber H600)
Vodn Jouha « Company Sourstary (wef Sth Javary 2071)

st Mareh, 2011
(2 In Hundreds)

424 8%
BRI
2
As3062

17153229
477 55000

48,50 242 37

The Conpanry s scquared lasd [ MIDC 2 Satpur, Mashik wider 8 rom concellsble opsratiag lesse

Fistire rentals payabls usdor the ron canceflable operating bease wre as fullowa.

Mol lntey than one yeor
Later than o your but nod Liter han five e
LLster than 5 years

Amiribsation sod Depresiation

3iwt Mairch, 2021
% Hundreds)

3zt March, 2020
(% irs Huandlresia)

TLAST ak
6,000 B,

{(LILITLET)

i March, 7020
(bt Hisnelrwclu)

LAH
1 4

155

An armouet aff € Nil (P,Y. 2 55,74 42 handreds) ot of eoat of leaschold Lind has beon smottised durig the year and defited to Capital Werk-m-Progress

Expenditure in furehgo curvency Nil (Previooe Year NIT)

Discloaure under the Miceo Swiall and Mediun Enterprises Development Act 2000 to (he enteat intimation from pariies has been received

Particalars

Mt Wlurch, JET

Slst Mwrch, 2030

(% in Hundredn)

T in Husdreds)

1) The s e the imigree due theseon i

Primcipal smoom due 1o hiiero s el

Mgl dag oo

not cEaunod by the pattics
(i1} The mcut of mistest paid by the busyer-in terms of secticn 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 slony well the amms of e paymesn made 1o

vear) but without adding the mzrest specified wder the MSMED Act 3006

(i The sencumt of antvest dus sau payabie for the yeer ol delay in msking payment [ whach ks boat pad bl beyand (he appoinied dry Gung 1he

(¥ The amount of micrest sceried and remaining wipaid ot the end of each sccounting vear.

{rﬁhmudhmummﬂu-dpqdhnminm:mm&qrmwutuﬁkuhn;kinl.uuﬁn-mwmlr
i 1o thw gmall cobarprase for ibe purposs of disaliowssce s » deduetibic eopenditare ander seetion 13 of Use MSMED Act 2006

Duew dn Micro sod snanll Enserpeives have boor detirmiied 1o the exierd sich partics hate been indemifind on the baxs of mé i by M

Ty vty Pietitace, portaimag ko Mok Laod, peading in o ble Bombay High coun bas beed willdrinin

¥

Theis haiss by rchiial mpeom by Audilon
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Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
Natfes b Finuneial Statesvents for the Year ended 31t March, 2021

Fuir Value Measuremeni

The Compuiny measares cenain fissneial mutrumenes o fairvalus of cach badunes et dole

Fair vaiue 1 the price that would be recélved 1o scll an sases or paid 1o trasafer i lishilley in/an drderly iramssction letopon markst participanin at the mensurpmen date. The fair vafoo moasansment i
bsased cn the: grenumplion that the srisaction 1 eall the asant or tranefir the knbikly takes slase cithor

#) bt the praneigal markss for the asset o lbiiity, or
b i b slisenoe off a pricapal market, m the mos sy g marker Gor ihe sisel ar lusbelity: scecnibl b the Compiny,

The Compamy ey vilaation techmigues ihat ar spproprnt n the Coftuttitanges end for which sufficicn dols are availsbls w messs G valae matcieni ring the war of rebevant shstrvable mpida asd
minimrittg e ume of mobservable inpuld.

AN mincta mnd Dabilities for wivel: Duir value in o ibimhomsn] o the al - i ‘mkutmm,w-m.Mumwmmuq
aegmficani i the Gnir valic momsirement a5 0 whole: '
lﬂl“.mﬂﬂmﬂuﬂdlmhm_m&rmmwmdm

Level I other techmigues for whach all mputs wisch have » sypuficam offiect o the recorded fai vahat arc ubservable, cither divetly o7 indirseily
The carrying mmnants and fair vaiues of fieaneial instruments by crisgers e & fdlows

1% in Hiurdrods)
Carving Valise
gt Mareh, 2021 Sk Minrch, 2030
Particulars Fair valie Fir o
Through Anartised Fair value through | - Fair value through _
AL cont rotor IIE;;E il At eod Tt or-lass 00 Amoriived cint
i
Financial Assels
(Cnsh & essh suavalan = | sEaTaN 16 . . - 10241038
Liams . 2 = |ARTLESA IR . - . -
tavestment L] . = [ ] .
(Dther fisanical asseis - LR - - - TR0
Financind sl
Batitaimgs E . . . . - - 1331167

Financial rink management objeetives snd paboes
The Comspany"e finareis| ok menagement i an bntegral jrart of how bo plas nnd cxooute jts busines ralsgies The Comgitry s finaocinl rsk managewen palacy o st by e Sanagang Baard

Market rish is the risk of lues of fidare cammings. (s valises or e cash Boms hat sy revalt fhom a chage in the price of n financial metrureest. The valug of 3 financial inranans may change a0
it OF ehnmgess s the mecres! ratce, cquity pries and other mirket chongss thal 40foct markee rivk sensitive (st

Mnrkof sk is ttribetabila 1o all maike diak sensltive inl iRstrurnents ek and depomits sad doans snd bomowmga

Murker Riuk. Inferest rote rk

Markai nisk m b rosk thel changes i market priccs —aich as wmhugmmmumm_ummmcm'.mwm wahas ol les beldings of Mimanginl
i

Credit Fisk

Crotit ik I the risk of fesncal ks o the Comparny if o mer or wm i mhwmm'mwm_mm-hpuummmmﬁ
stalulory depoits with regulsory agencies aned slso arisey (o cosh hold with barks asd fimance aiiana. The 12 et sk (8 exjual (o the carrying value of flse lmancisl ausels.
The objective of miansging couniusjarty crodi sk is 40 prevent losses in flsancial awsets. The Conpany ussesis the crodil quality of the sounioepartioe, (sking insa scoount their financial pusition, pasd
oxporicece and other fcioas

The Campiny limits itz exposure to eredil nuk of pash beld with barda by dealing with highly raiou banks aisd iustititions end (il o retsin sfMcicnd balances in bank accounts niquired 10 meel &
mionith's eperationsl costs. The managomant revigws the bank accounts on regalae basts aisd fund drawdwms are plaaied o eure it there w minhnal maplus each im bank sceoma. The Company
thacs: nod (weses wmy eredit rigks o depowits with igudilony aaibioeiss

The Conmgtres s masivnin cxpisare o crsdit sk it the eomnponenis af the balanes sheet 25 o 376t March, 2021 and 310 March, 205 ié the camymg smousia s mentionad mn Nots 67,5 and §
Liguidity Risk

Liguidity: vidk is defined we tie riek (hat the Compny will noe be able o selile of ineet its obligations an time_ or ot 8 ressonable peice, The processes and palicies related to sich risk s avosem by
Capinal Mamngemeni

For the pupess of (he Company s capital management, copitnl moludos msaed équity capital, share promesm snd all piber equity reserves mtrbutsbio w the equity holdem, The primsry objectivg of the
Company s capial 18 4 i (he sharehodder valie mid fo ensune the Compiany's sbility 10 contiies i & ~goeg concemn”

mc“mhlﬂdﬂthwﬂi"Mlﬂﬁm.Thﬂmwmlwnmmwu.mmﬂhmmwwhmﬂmmmwmm Totel deby
imeludes now current burowing shich sty butrewang from slinsals bolding saupan of the Conpery . The Conmpeny: manmges: th cxpial srucnere: an ks st o 0 e lght of
changes w coonomsc conditions and e risk charneteristics. of the underkving et

1% in Hundrods)
Asm Axat
F1 ut Mureh, 2021 3wl March, 2020
1 S8,60,M46 53 53,10 BRS, 7O
» 13131167
15,08, 748, 16) (302 410.58)
i)} [B.50.748.16) 3
usten ned iheld vo weljiesiel E raditn | {0 18) (.01}
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Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
Notes to Finasicial Statements far the Year coded 310 March, 2021

Previows Year Comparatives

Previaus year's figwes have been iegroped | roclassified wiiere neseesary 1o eonform o this year's presslation.

The Company fees taken vitin scoott externl d imenal informition for amessi
& 01 Tinacinl innpact of Covid pamdeense: on the Dnoncisl nssets of the ompme

As per wty et of even ilais

Place Mumbi
Duate - Jus 7, 2021

i posaibila et of COVID 1Y o6 vars ehemesty of fis linancial resiis, ineluiflisg secoversiifiey uf s asets Thore

For and on beball of the Bosed of Direeturs
Westfield Entertalument Privite




